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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Corcoran, California 
 
 
We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Corcoran, California (the City), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. 
 
Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and 
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
Auditor’s Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.  We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  Those standards require that 
we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 
 
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements.  The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.  In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an 
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion.  An audit also 
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting 
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements. 
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinions. 
 
Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial 
position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund 
information of the City of Corcoran, California, as of June 30, 2013, and the respective changes in financial position 
and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. 
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Emphasis of Matter 
 
As described in Note 9 to the financial statements, effective July 1, 2012, the City adopted the provisions of Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred 
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, and GASB No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities.  GASB 
Statement No. 65 recognizes certain amounts that were previously reported as assets and liabilities as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflow of resources on the statement of net position.  Our opinion is not modified with respect to 
these matters. 
 
Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Management has omitted the management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements.  Such missing information, 
although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate 
operational, economic, or historical context.  Our opinion on the basic financial statements is not affected by this missing 
information. 
 
Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the schedule of funding progress on 
page 58 and budgetary comparison information on pages 59-62 be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements.  Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial 
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.  We have applied certain limited procedures to 
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the 
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements.  We do not express an opinion or provide any 
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an 
opinion or provide any assurance. 
 
Supplementary Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the 
City’s basic financial statements.  The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are presented for purposes of 
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. 
 
The combining nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate 
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.  Such information 
has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records 
used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional 
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.  In our opinion, the 
combining nonmajor fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
 
Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated January 17, 2014, on our 
consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions 
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.  The purpose of that report is to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.  That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial 
reporting and compliance. 

 
Clovis, California 
January 17, 2014 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Unrestricted 4,490,536$          7,507,525$          11,998,061$        
Restricted -                           69,706                 69,706                 

Cash with fiscal agent - restricted 76,506                 731,518               808,024               
Receivables 4,340,998            2,057,784            6,398,782            
Prepaid expenses 65,948                 17,656                 83,604                 
Deposits 182,251               -                           182,251               
Property held for resale 2,102,299            -                           2,102,299            
Due from Successor Agency 88,313                 -                           88,313                 
Capital assets:

Non-depreciable 1,287,089            1,854,720            3,141,809            

Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 10,077,032          26,890,617          36,967,649          

Total assets 22,710,972          39,129,526          61,840,498          

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Derivative instrument - interest rate swap -                           3,037,308            3,037,308            

Total deferred outflows of resources -                           3,037,308            3,037,308            

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 257,952$             504,104$             762,056               
Deposits 57,843                 -                           57,843                 
Interest payable -                           81,544                 81,544                 
Unearned revenues 3,685,183            -                           3,685,183            
Noncurrent liabilities:

Due within one year:
Note payable -                           94,760                 94,760                 
Certificate of participation 50,000                 600,000               650,000               
Compensated absences 202,146               27,426                 229,572               

Due in more than one year:
Note payable -                           367,545               367,545               
Certificate of participation 200,000               21,419,761          21,619,761          

Compensated absences 221,001               6,319                   227,320               

Total liabilities 4,674,125            23,101,459          27,775,584          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Derivative instrument - interest rate swap -                           3,037,308            3,037,308            

Total deferred inflows of resources -                           3,037,308            3,037,308            

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets 11,114,121          6,263,271            17,377,392          
Restricted for:

Debt service 86,724                 801,224               887,948               
Community development 333,566               -                           333,566               
Public safety 176,249               -                           176,249               
Transportation and streets 2,158,959            -                           2,158,959            
Parks and recreation 49,977                 -                           49,977                 

Unrestricted 4,117,251            8,963,572            13,080,823          

Total net position 18,036,847$        16,028,067$        34,064,914$        
 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

Governmental Business-Type
Expenses Activities Activities Total

FUNCTIONS/PROGRAMS:
Governmental activities:

General government 786,712$         -$                     -$                     -$                      (786,712)$        -$                       (786,712)$        
Community development 1,776,515     52,693          858,427        -                     (865,395)       -                     (865,395)       
Public safety 3,844,922     28,188          218,628        -                     (3,598,106)    -                         (3,598,106)    
Public works 956,130        -                    716,673        6,456             (233,001)       -                         (233,001)       
Parks and recreation 416,188        -                    -                    -                     (416,188)       -                         (416,188)       
Interest on long-term debt 25,156          -                       -                       -                        (25,156)         -                         (25,156)         

Total governmental activities 7,805,623        80,881              1,793,728        6,456                (5,924,558)       -                         (5,924,558)       

Business-type activities:
Water 4,653,913        4,465,387         -                       -                        -                       (188,526)            (188,526)          
Sewer 1,130,619        1,020,918         -                       -                        -                       (109,701)            (109,701)          
Refuse 1,655,061        1,648,247         -                       -                        -                       (6,814)                (6,814)              
Storm drain 354,124           304,584            -                       -                        -                       (49,540)              (49,540)            
Transit 774,289           72,611              1,393,322        -                        -                       691,644             691,644            

Total business-type activities 8,568,006        7,511,747         1,393,322        -                        -                       337,063             337,063            

Total 16,373,629$    7,592,628$       3,187,050$      6,456$              (5,924,558)       337,063             (5,587,495)       

General revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes 616,486           -                         616,486            
Sales and use taxes 1,148,167        -                         1,148,167         
Franchise taxes 242,704           -                         242,704            
Other taxes 163,538           -                         163,538            

Motor vehicle in-lieu 2,118,981        -                         2,118,981         
Investment income 11,802             (34,282)              (22,480)            
Rental income 327,827           48,251               376,078            

Miscellaneous 233,543           569,612             803,155            

Total general revenues and transfers 4,863,048        583,581             5,446,629         

Change in net position (1,061,510)       920,644             (140,866)          

Net position - beginning 19,129,251      15,912,297        35,041,548       

Prior period adjustments (30,894)            (804,874)            (835,768)          

Net position - beginning, restated 19,098,357      15,107,423        34,205,780       

Net position - ending 18,036,847$    16,028,067$      34,064,914$     

Charges For 
Services

Operating 
Grants and 

Contributions

Capital Grants 
and 

Contributions

Changes in Net Position
Net (Expense) Revenue and

Program Revenues
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
BALANCE SHEET – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

General
Fund

Housing 
Authority 
Special

Refenue Fund

Community 
Development 
Block Grant 

Special
Revenue Fund

Home Program 
Special 

Revenue Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total
Governmental 

Funds

ASSETS

Cash and investments:
Unrestricted 1,878,792$      14,414$          132,890$         260,812$          2,203,628$       4,490,536$     

Cash with fiscal agent:
Restricted -                       -                      -                       -                       76,506              76,506            

Receivables 260,141           176,332          1,258,363        2,320,661         325,501            4,340,998       
Due from Successor Agency 88,313             -                      -                       -                       -                       88,313            
Prepaid expenses 61,101             -                      51                    -                       4,794                65,946            
Deposits 182,251           -                      -                       -                       -                       182,251          

Property held for resale 2,102,299        -                      -                       -                       -                       2,102,299       

Total assets 4,572,897$      190,746$        1,391,304$      2,581,473$       2,610,429$       11,346,849$   

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 156,452$         -$                    5,779$             68,360$            27,358$            257,949$        

Deposits 57,143             700                 -                       -                       -                       57,843            

Total liabilities 213,595           700                 5,779               68,360              27,358              315,792          

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues 16,887             176,325          1,258,208        2,320,588         115,011            3,887,019       

Total deferred inflows of resources 16,887             176,325          1,258,208        2,320,588         115,011            3,887,019       

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Prepaid expenses 61,101             -                      -                       -                       -                       61,101            
Property held for resale 2,102,299        -                      -                       -                       -                       2,102,299       

Restricted for:
Debt service   -                       -                      -                       -                       86,724              86,724            

Unreserved:
Community development -                       13,721            127,317           192,525            3                       333,566          
Public safety -                       -                      -                       -                       176,249            176,249          
Transportation and streets -                       -                      -                       -                       2,158,959         2,158,959       
Parks and recreation -                       -                      -                       -                       49,977              49,977            

Unassigned 2,179,015        -                      -                       -                       (3,852)              2,175,163       

Total fund balances 4,342,415        13,721            127,317           192,525            2,468,060         7,144,038       

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
  resources, and fund balances 4,572,897$      190,746$        1,391,304$      2,581,473$       2,610,429$       11,346,849$   

 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are 
different because:

7,144,038$           

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources; therefore, they are not reported in the governmental funds.

           11,364,121 

Long-term liabilities were not due and payable in the current period;
therefore, they are not reported in the governmental funds.                (673,147)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures; therefore, they are unavailable in the governmental
funds. 201,835                

 $        18,036,847    Net position of governmental activities

   Total fund balances - total governmental funds

 
 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

General
Fund

Housing 
Authority
Special

Revenue Fund

Community 
Development
Block Grant

Special
Revenue Fund

Home
Program 
Special

Revenue Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

REVENUES
Property taxes 588,939$         -$                   -$                     -$                     9,204$            598,143$        
Other taxes 1,435,075        -                     -                       -                       -                      1,435,075       
Licenses and permits 109,395           -                     -                       -                       -                      109,395          
Intergovernmental revenues 2,226,872        -                     -                       -                       714,245          2,941,117       
Charges for services 78,171             -                     -                       -                       -                      78,171            
Fines and penalties 26,544             -                     -                       -                       1,091              27,635            
Use of money and property 441,205           19,806           137                  692                  81,382            543,222          
Grant drawdowns 41,395             -                     249,080           312,463           178,782          781,720          
Loan repayments -                       8,566             158,000           133,212           11,592            311,370          

Miscellaneous 96,914             811                15,919             32,130             37,483            183,257          

Total revenues 5,044,510        29,183           423,136           478,497           1,033,779       7,009,105       

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 640,069           -                     -                       -                       13,987            654,056          
Community development -                       1,227,413      380,560           319,218           1,440              1,928,631       
Public safety 3,623,763        -                     -                       -                       62,721            3,686,484       
Public works 230,247           -                     -                       -                       524,377          754,624          
Parks and recreation 310,893           -                     -                       -                       41,659            352,552          

Capital outlay:
General government 8,198               -                     -                       -                       -                      8,198              
Public safety 3,097               -                     -                       -                       85,434            88,531            
Public works -                       -                     -                       -                       102,134          102,134          
Parks and recreation -                       -                     -                       -                       12,788            12,788            

Debt service:
Principal retirement -                       -                     -                       -                       50,000            50,000            

Interest and fiscal charges -                       -                     -                       -                       25,156            25,156            

Total expenditures 4,816,267        1,227,413      380,560           319,218           919,696          7,663,154       

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures 228,243           (1,198,230)     42,576             159,279           114,083          (654,049)         

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in 433,873           -                     250,965           -                       -                      684,838          

Operating transfers out (333,173)          -                     (185,705)          -                       (165,960)         (684,838)         

Total other financing sources (uses) 100,700           -                     65,260             -                       (165,960)         -                      

Net change in fund balances 328,943           (1,198,230)     107,836           159,279           (51,877)           (654,049)         

Fund balances - beginning 4,019,651        1,211,951      19,481             33,246             2,519,937       7,804,266       

Prior period adjustment (6,179)              -                     -                       -                       -                      (6,179)             

Fund balances - beginning, as restated 4,013,472        1,211,951      19,481             33,246             2,519,937       7,798,087       

Fund balances - ending 4,342,415$      13,721$         127,317$         192,525$         2,468,060$     7,144,038$     

 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES 

IN FUND BALANCES TO THE GOVERNMENT-WIDE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are 
different because:

(654,049)$             

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures; however, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is capitalized. This is the
amount of capital assets recorded.                 249,042 

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the government-wide
statement of activities, but it does not require the use of current financial
resources; therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as an expenditure
in the governmenmental funds.                (544,012)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets
(i.e., sales, trade-ins, and donations) is an increase in net position.

                    1,275 

Compensated absences expense reported in the statement of activities does
not require the use of current financial resources; therefore, it is not reported
as an expenditure in the governmental funds.                  (56,287)

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period
expenditures; therefore, they are unavailable in the governmental funds.                (107,479)

The issuance of long-term debt (eg., bonds) provides current financial
resources to the governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of
long-term debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental
funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also,
governmental funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts,
and similar items when debt is first issued; whereas these amounts are
deferred and amortized in the statement of activities. This amount is the net
effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related
items.                   50,000 

(1,061,510)$            Change in net position of governmental activities

   Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Water Sewer Refuse Transit Storm Drain
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

ASSETS
Current assets:
   Cash and cash equivalents:

   Unrestricted 5,714,613$   636,907$     158,021$     822,233$     175,751$     7,507,525$     
   Restricted 69,706          -                   -                   -                   -                   69,706            

   Cash with fiscal agent - restricted 731,518        -                   -                   -                   -                   731,518          
   Receivables 699,191        212,303       290,341       795,378       60,571         2,057,784       
   Prepaids 4,373            5,723           1,934           4,990           636              17,656            
   Due from other funds -                    20,815         24,633         -                   3,818           49,266            

Total current assets 7,219,401     875,748       474,929       1,622,601    240,776       10,433,455     

Noncurrent assets:
Advances to other funds 373,900        -                   -                   -                   -                   373,900          
Capital assets:

Nondepreciable 1,527,017     281,050       -                   -                   46,653         1,854,720       
Depreciable, net of accumulated depreciation 21,665,509   2,704,321    2,379           733,986       1,784,422    26,890,617     

Total noncurrent assets 23,566,426   2,985,371    2,379           733,986       1,831,075    29,119,237     

Total assets 30,785,827   3,861,119    477,308       2,356,587    2,071,851    39,552,692     

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Derivative instrument - interest rate swap 3,037,308     -                   -                   -                   -                   3,037,308       

Total deferred outflows of resources 3,037,308     -                   -                   -                   -                   3,037,308       

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable 322,797        65,364         104,901       8,199           2,839           504,100          
Interest payable 81,544          -                   -                   -                   -                   81,544            
Due to other funds 49,266          -                   -                   -                   -                   49,266            
Compensated absences 11,936          8,835           847              4,826           982              27,426            
Certificates of participation 600,000        -                   -                   -                   -                   600,000          

Notes payable 61,111          33,649         -                   -                   -                   94,760            

Total current liabilities 1,126,654     107,848       105,748       13,025         3,821           1,357,096       

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences 6,319            -                   -                   -                   -                   6,319              
Advances from other funds -                    -                   -                   -                   373,900       373,900          
Certificates of participation 21,419,761   -                   -                   -                   -                   21,419,761     
Notes payable 326,386        41,159         -                   -                   -                   367,545          

Total noncurrent liabilities 21,752,466   41,159         -                   -                   373,900       22,167,525     

Total liabilities 22,879,120   149,007       105,748       13,025         377,721       23,524,621     

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Derivative instrument - interest rate swap 3,037,308     -                   -                   -                   -                   3,037,308       

Total deferred inflows of resources 3,037,308     -                   -                   -                   -                   3,037,308       

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 785,268        2,910,563    2,379           733,986       1,831,075    6,263,271       
Restricted for:

Debt service 801,224        -                   -                   -                   -                   801,224          
Unrestricted 6,320,215     801,549       369,181       1,609,576    (136,945)      8,963,576       

Total net position 7,906,707$   3,712,112$  371,560$     2,343,562$  1,694,130$  16,028,071$    



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Water Sewer Refuse Transit Storm Drain
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

OPERATING REVENUES:
Charges for services 4,465,247$   1,020,918$ 1,648,247$ 72,611$      304,284$    7,511,307$   
Connection fees 140               -                  -                  -                  300             440               

Total operating revenues 4,465,387     1,020,918   1,648,247   72,611        304,584      7,511,747     

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Personnel costs 422,214        289,895      58,066        297,371      31,583        1,099,129     
Maintenance and supplies 1,711,286     393,555      1,416,221   68,555        28,081        3,617,698     
Depreciation and amortization 1,278,705     277,603      2,658          70,195        92,859        1,722,020     
Administrative and allocated costs 296,238        165,227      178,117      338,169      201,601      1,179,352     

Total operating expenses 3,708,443     1,126,280   1,655,062   774,290      354,124      7,618,199     

Operating income (loss) 756,944        (105,362)     (6,815)         (701,679)     (49,540)       (106,452)       

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES):
Interest income (45,600)         1,972          439             1,843          464             (40,882)         
Rental income 44,651          6,600          -                  3,600          -                  54,851          
Grants -                    -                  -                  785,186      -                  785,186        
Capital contributions 8,061            19,856        -                  -                  300             28,217          
Intergovernmental -                    -                  -                  608,136      -                  608,136        
Other income 530,015        10,585        312             416             67               541,395        
Interest and fiscal charges (945,466)       (4,337)         -                  -                  -                  (949,803)       

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (408,339)       34,676        751             1,399,181   831             1,027,100     

Change in net position 348,605        (70,686)       (6,064)         697,502      (48,709)       920,648        

Net position - beginning 8,362,977     3,782,798   377,624      1,646,060   1,742,839   15,912,298   

Prior period adjustment (804,875)       -                  -                  -                  -                  (804,875)       

Net position - beginning, as restated 7,558,102     3,782,798   377,624      1,646,060   1,742,839   15,107,423   

Net position - ending 7,906,707$   3,712,112$ 371,560$    2,343,562$ 1,694,130$ 16,028,071$  
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Water Sewer Refuse Transit Storm Drain
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Cash received from customers 4,470,538$     1,023,440$    1,653,864$   72,611$       305,351$     7,525,804$   
Cash received from other -                      (12,901)         -                    -                   -                  (12,901)         
Cash payments to suppliers for goods and services (1,718,187)      (386,323)       (1,422,816)    (411,372)      (31,383)       (3,970,081)    
Cash payments to employees for services (419,774)         (289,649)       (57,635)         (296,203)      (31,555)       (1,094,816)    

Cash payments to other funds for allocated costs (301,966)         (162,811)       (175,254)       -                   (201,157)     (841,188)       

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,030,611       171,756         (1,841)           (634,964)      41,256         1,606,818     

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Proceeds from nonoperating revenues 44,651            6,600             -                    3,600           -                  54,851          

Net cash provided (used) by noncapital
  financing activities 44,651            6,600             -                    3,600           -                  54,851          

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Acquisition of capital assets (789,241)         4,602             -                    (20,921)        -                  (805,560)       
Principal payment (1,629,527)      (32,480)         -                    -                   -                  (1,662,007)    
Interfund loan repayment -                      -                    -                    -                  -                    
Grants -                      -                    -                    242,459       -                  242,459        
Intergovernmental -                      -                    -                    608,552       -                  608,552        
Capital contributions 8,061              19,856           -                    -                   300              28,217          
Other receipts 512,027          10,585           9,066            -                   67                531,745        
Interest and fiscal charges (1,024,997)      (4,337)           -                    -                   -                  (1,029,334)    
Short-term borrowing -                      -                    -                    -                  -                    
Lease payments -                      -                    -                    -                  -                    
Bond issuance costs (242,852)         -                    -                    -                   -                  (242,852)       

Bond discount 86,837            -                    -                    -                   -                  86,837          

Net cash provided (used) by capital and related
 financing activities (3,079,692)      (1,774)           9,066            830,090       367              (2,241,943)    

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest on investments (45,021)           2,166             456               2,585           476              (39,338)         

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (45,021)           2,166             456               2,585           476              (39,338)         

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,049,451)      178,748         7,681            201,311       42,099         (619,612)       

Cash and cash equivalents, July 1 7,565,288       458,159         150,340        620,922       133,652       8,928,361     

Cash and cash equivalents, June 30 6,515,837$     636,907$       158,021$      822,233$     175,751$     8,308,749$   
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

ENTERPRISE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Water Sewer Refuse Transit Storm Drain
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Operating income (loss) 756,944$        (105,362)$     (6,815)$         (701,679)$    (49,540)$     (106,452)$     

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to
 net cash provided (used) by operating activities:

 Depreciation 1,218,345       277,603         2,658            70,195         92,859         1,661,660     
 Amortization 60,360            -                    -                    -                   -                  60,360          

Changes in assets and liabilities:
 (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable, net 5,151              2,524             5,615            -                   767              14,057          
 (Increase) decrease in other receivables -                      (12,901)         -                    -                   -                  (12,901)         
 (Increase) decrease in due from other funds -                      2,418             2,862            -                   444              5,724            
 (Increase) decrease in prepaids (4,373)             (5,723)           (1,934)           (4,990)          (636)            (17,656)         
 Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (2,532)             12,953           (4,658)           342              (2,666)         3,439            
 Increase (decrease) in due to other funds (5,724)             -                    -                    -                   -                  (5,724)           

 Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 2,440              244                431               1,168           28                4,311            

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities 2,030,611$     171,756$       (1,841)$         (634,964)$    41,256$       1,606,818$   

Water Sewer Refuse Transit Storm Drain
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Cash and cash equivalents:

Unrestricted 5,714,613$     636,907$       158,021$      822,233$     175,751$     7,507,525$   

Restricted 69,706            -                    -                    -                   -                  69,706          

Cash with fiscal agent - restricted 731,518          -                    -                    -                   -                  731,518        

6,515,837$    636,907$      158,021$     822,233$     175,751$    8,308,749$  

Reconciliation of Cash to Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided (Used) by Operating Activities
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 
 

RDA Successor

Agency Agency Trust

Funds Fund

ASSETS

Cash 18,467$                 298,306$             

Cash with fiscal agent -                             313,008               

Receivables:

Interest 88                          -                           

Notes 1,135,596              -                           

Capital assets, net -                             3,419,552            

Total assets 1,154,151$            4,030,866$          

LIABILITIES

Due to City of Corcoran -$                           88,313$               

Bond payable -                             3,319,546            
Due to other agencies 1,154,151              -                           

Total liabilities 1,154,151              3,407,859            

NET POSITION

Held in trust -$                           623,007$              
 



 

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement. 
21 

CITY OF CORCORAN 
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

FIDUCIARY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 
 

RDA Successor
Agency Trust

Fund

ADDITIONS

Taxes 796,989$               

Total additions 796,989                 

DEDUCTIONS

Planning and community development 136,307                 

Depreciation 126,019                 

Amortization 12,161                   

Interest 166,668                 

Total deductions 441,155                 

Change in net position 355,834                 

Net position - beginning 267,173                 

Net position - ending 623,007$               
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
The financial statements of the City of Corcoran (the City) have been prepared in conformity with 
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units.  The Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental 
accounting and financial reporting principles.  The most significant of the government’s accounting 
principles are described below. 

Reporting Entity 

The City of Corcoran (the City) was incorporated on August 11, 1914, as a general law city.  The City has 
a council/manager form of government and is governed by a five-member elected council.  The City 
Manager is appointed by the City Council.  The City provides the following services: public safety (police), 
water utility, sanitation (solid waste disposal, sanitary wastewater and storm water utilities), parks and 
recreation, community development, public works, and general administrative services. 
 
The accompanying basic financial statements include the financial activities of the City, the primary 
government, and its component unit, which is the Corcoran Public Financing Authority (the Authority).  As 
further described in Note 16, the Redevelopment Agency was dissolved effective February 1, 2012.  As 
required by generally accepted accounting principles and Governmental Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, these financial statements present 
the City and its component unit (the Authority), an entity for which the City is considered to be financially 
accountable.  The Authority, although a legally separate entity is, in substance, part of the City’s 
operations.  Further, the council has significant influence over the operations of the Authority and data 
from this component unit is combined with data of the primary government.  The Authority has a June 30 
year-end.  No separate annual financial statements are prepared for the Authority. 
 
Blended Component Unit 
 
The Corcoran Joint Powers Finance Authority (the Authority) is a non-profit corporation incorporated 
under the laws of the State of California in 1987.  The formation of the Authority creates a financing entity 
through which tax allocation revenue bonds can be issued for the purpose of financing or refinancing 
capital projects of the Community Redevelopment Agency as permitted by the Community Law.  The City 
Council acts as the governing board of the Authority and is responsible for the Authority’s fiscal and 
administrative activities.  The funds of the Authority have been included in the governmental activities in 
the financial statements. 
 
Basis of Presentation 
 
The accounts of the City are organized on the basis of funds.  A fund is an independent fiscal and 
accounting entity with a self-balancing set of accounts.  Fund accounting segregates funds according to 
their intended purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with finance-related 
legal and contractual provisions.  The minimum number of funds is maintained consistent with legal and 
managerial requirements. 
 
Government-Wide Financial Statements – The statement of net position and the statement of activities 
display information about the primary government (the City) and its component unit.  These statements 
include the financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities.  Eliminations have 
been made to minimize the double-counting of internal activities.  These statements distinguish between 
the governmental and business-type activities of the City.  Governmental activities generally are financed 
through taxes, intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions.  Business-type 
activities are financed in whole or in part by fees charged to external parties. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
The statement of activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues 
for each different identifiable activity of the City’s business-type activities and for each function of the 
City’s governmental activities.  Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program 
or function and, therefore, are included in the program expense reported for individual function.  Certain 
indirect costs, which cannot be identified and broken down, are included in the program expense reported 
for individual functions and activities.  Program revenues include, 1) fines, fees, and charges paid by the 
recipients of goods and services offered by the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are 
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular program.  Revenues that are 
not classified as program revenues, including all taxes, are presented instead as general revenues. 
 
Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB No. 34 in regards to interfund activities, 
payables and receivables.  All internal balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated 
except those representing balances between the governmental activities and the business-type activities, 
which are presented as internal balances and eliminated in the total primary government column.  In the 
statement of activities those transactions between governmental and business-type activities have not 
been eliminated.  The following interfund activities have been eliminated:  Due to/Due from Other Funds, 
Interfund Note Receivable/Interfund Long-term Debt, and Transfers In/Transfers Out. 
 
Fund Financial Statements – The fund financial statements provide information about the City’s funds.  
Separate statements for each fund category – governmental, proprietary, and fiduciary – are presented.  
The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each 
displayed in a separate column.  All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and 
reported as nonmajor funds.  An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the 
differences in funds and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements to the net position 
and changes in net position presented in the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions 
associated with the principal activity of the fund.  Exchange transactions are those in which party receives 
and gives up essentially equal values.  Non-operating revenues, such as subsidies and investment 
earnings, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.  Operating expenses are those 
expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the fund.  All other expenses are reported as 
non-operating expenses. 
 
The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

 
 The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City.  It is used to account for all financial 

resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 
 

 The Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund is used to account for future financing for low-
income household for the acquisition, rehabilitation, or new construction of single family homes.   
 

 The Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the 
federal grants that provide for development of a viable urban community by providing suitable 
housing, principally for low and moderate income residents.   
 

 The HOME Program Special Revenue Fund is used to account for the federal grants that 
provide financing for low-income household for the acquisition, rehabilitation, or new construction 
of single family homes. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Basis of Presentation (Continued) 
 
Enterprise fund financial statements include a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, 
expenses and changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows for each major enterprise fund and 
non-major fund. 

The City has five major enterprise funds, the Water, Sewer, Refuse, Transit, and Storm Drain, which are 
used to account for operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business 
enterprise.  In an enterprise fund, the intent of the City Council is that costs (expenses, including 
depreciation) of providing services to the general public, on a continuing basis, be financed or recovered 
primarily through user charges. 
 
The City reports the following major enterprise funds: 
 

 The Water Fund accounts for financial activity of the water utility system. 
 

 The Sewer Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the sewage collection and 
wastewater treatment utility system. 
 

 The Refuse Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the solid waste collection and 
disposal utility system. 
 

 The Transit Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the transit activities including 
Dial-A-Ride, Amtrak ticket sales, and related street construction and maintenance. 
 

 The Storm Drain Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the storm drain system. 
 
The City's fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the 
government.  The fund’s activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a 
statement of changes in fiduciary net position.  The City uses an agency fund to account for assets held 
for, due to, and other.  This fund is custodial in nature and does not involve measurement of results of 
operations.  Accordingly, it presents only a statement of fiduciary net position and does not present a 
statement of changes in fiduciary net position.  Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide 
statements because the resources of those funds are not available to support the City’s own programs.  
Fiduciary funds are presented on an economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements. 
 
The City reports the following fiduciary funds: 

 
 The Assets Seizure (Unprocessed) Agency Fund accounts for money that is seized as part of 

a police action and this money is used to help purchase fixed assets for the police department. 
Expenditures are limited to police-related activities. 

 The Kings County CDBG Agency Fund accounts for Kings County Community Development 
Block Grants Program collections on notes receivable and remittance to Kings County. 

 The Corcoran Police Explorers Agency Fund accounts for the moneys raised by the Police 
Explorers and the use of those funds. 

 The Successor Agency of the Redevelopment Agency Trust Fund is used to account for 
assets and liabilities of the former redevelopment agency until they are distributed to other units 
of state and local government as a result of the dissolution of the redevelopment agency. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting 
 
Government-Wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements – The government-wide, 
proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources 
measurement focus.  The government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using 
the accrual basis of accounting.  Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the 
time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the related cash flows take place.  Nonexchange 
transactions, in which the City gives (or receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in 
exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants, entitlements and donations.  On an accrual basis, 
revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied.  Revenues 
from sales taxes are recognized when the underlying transactions take place.  Revenues from grants, 
entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been 
satisfied. 
 
Governmental Fund Financial Statements – Governmental funds are reported using current financial 
resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting.  Under the modified accrual 
basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when measurable and available.  Property and sales taxes, 
interest, certain state and federal grants, and charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs 
within sixty days after the end of the accounting period so as to be both measurable and available.  
Expenditures are generally recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting.  However, 
debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgments and compensated 
absences, are recorded only when payment is due.  General capital assets acquisitions are reported as 
expenditures in governmental funds.  Proceeds of general long-term debt and capital leases are reported 
as other financing sources. 
 
The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and 
Interpretations currently in effect), as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before 
November 30, 1989, unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: 
Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles 
Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting 
Procedure.  In addition, the City applies all applicable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after 
November 30, 1989, except those that conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements to its business-
type activities. 
 
Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.  Operating 
revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal 
activity of each fund.  Nonoperating revenues, such as interest income, state and federal grants, and 
subsidies, result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities.  Operating expenses include 
costs for providing services and delivering goods such as administrative expenses and depreciation on 
capital assets.  All other expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses. 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position 
 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For the statement of cash flows, the City considers all highly liquid investments with maturities of three 
months or less when acquired as cash and cash equivalents. 
 
All cash and cash equivalents of the enterprise funds are pooled with the City's pooled cash and cash 
equivalents. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Restricted Assets 

Certain proceeds of general obligation debt and enterprise debt are classified as restricted assets on the 
balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable debt covenants.  “Cash with fiscal agent” is used 
to report resources set aside for potential deficiencies in the repayment ability of the debt service fund 
and enterprise funds, and for payment of construction projects undertaken by the City. 
 
Interfund Transactions 

Interfund transactions are reflected as loans, services provided or used, or reimbursements or transfers.  
Loans reported as receivables and payables as, appropriate, are subject to elimination upon 
consolidation and are referred to as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e. the current portion of interfund 
loans) or “advances to/from other funds” (i.e. the noncurrent portion of interfund loans).  Any residual 
balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type activities are reported in 
the fund financial statements, and are offset by a fund balance reserve account in applicable 
governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation and are not available financial 
resources. 
 
Services provided or used, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as revenues and 
expenditures or expenses.  Reimbursements occur when one fund incurs a cost, charges the appropriate 
benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement.  All other interfund transactions are 
treated as transfers.  Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are netted as part of the 
reconciliation to the government-wide presentation. 
 
Receivables 

Enterprise fund receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts.  All customers are 
billed monthly.  The estimated value of services provided, but unbilled at year-end, has been included in 
the accompanying financial statements. 
 
Property Tax Calendar 

Property taxes are assessed, collected and allocated by Kings County throughout the fiscal year 
according to the following property tax calendar. 
 

Lien Date  January 1 
Levy Date  July 1 to June 30 
Due Dates  November 1, 1st installment, February 1, 2nd installment 
Delinquent Dates  December 10, 1st installment, April 10, 2nd installment 

Revenues from taxpayer-assessed taxes (sales and use, business license, transient occupancy, utility 
users, gas, and franchise fees) are accrued in the governmental funds when they are both measurable 
and available.  The City considers these revenues available if they are received during the period when 
settlement of prior fiscal year accounts payable occurs.  Historically, the majority of these taxes are 
received within 60 days of the fiscal year-end. 
 
Grant and entitlement revenues are recorded as receivables in the funds when all eligibility requirements 
have been met.  The corresponding governmental fund revenues are recorded when they become 
available, with the differences recorded as unearned revenue.  Enterprise fund revenues are recorded as 
non-operating revenues when the receivables are recorded.  Some grant and entitlement revenues are 
not susceptible to accrual, in which case the corresponding revenues are recorded when received. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
The City accrues as receivable all property taxes received during the first (60) days of the new fiscal year. 
 
Discount on Bonds 

The City’s bond or debt discounts are recorded as expenditures in the year they are incurred for 
governmental fund debt and are amortized over the life of the bond for debt service fund. 
 
Capital Assets 

The City’s assets are capitalized at historical cost or estimated historical cost.  City policy has set the 
capitalization threshold for reporting capital assets at $2,000.  Gifts or contributions of capital assets are 
recorded at fair value when received.  Depreciation is recorded on a straight-line basis over the useful 
lives of the assets as follows: 
 

Buildings and improvements 25-40 years 
Infrastructures  5-20 years 
Equipment  3-10 years 
Vehicles  5-10 years 
Utility system  30 years 

 
In June 1999, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued Statement No. 34 which 
requires the inclusion of infrastructure capital assets in local governments’ basic financial statements.  In 
accordance with Statement No. 34, the City has included the value of all infrastructure acquired since the 
beginning of the 2003 fiscal year.  The City made a decision not to capitalize infrastructure in place prior 
to the adoption of GASB 34. 
 
The City defines infrastructure as capital assets that are stationery and have expected useful lives 
significantly in excess of most capital assets.  The assets include the street system, water purification and 
distribution system, sewer collection and treatment system, park and recreation improvement, storm 
water conveyance system, and buildings combined with the site amenities such as parking and 
landscaped areas used by the City in the conduct of its business. 
 
Risk Management 
 
The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which 
establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA).  The relationship 
between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the City for financial 
reporting purposes. 
 
Property Held for Resale 
 
Property held for resale consists of parcels of land and improvements.  The parcels are recorded at cost. 
 



CITY OF CORCORAN 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

30 

NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Interest Payable 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable of long-term debt is recognized as the 
liability is incurred for the governmental fund-types and proprietary-fund types. 
 
In the fund financial statements, proprietary fund-types recognize the interest payable when the liability is 
incurred. 
 
Compensated Absences Payable 
 
It is the City’s policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused vacation and sick pay 
benefits.  All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial 
statements.  A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for 
example, as a result of employee resignations and retirements.  The liability has been calculated using 
the vesting method, in which leave amounts for both employees who currently are eligible to receive 
termination payments and other employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive 
such payments upon termination are included. 
 
The City limits accumulated vacation to 30 working days for employees and 45 working days for 
management.  All outstanding vacation pay is payable upon termination of employment. 
 
Unearned Revenue 
 
Unearned revenue is that for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which revenue 
recognition criteria have not been met.  The City typically records intergovernmental revenues (primary 
grants and subventions) received but not earned (qualifying expenditures not yet incurred). 
 
Long-Term Debt 
 
In the government-wide and proprietary fund-type financial statements, long-term debt and other long-
term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type 
activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net position.  Bond premiums and discounts are deferred 
and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line method.  Bonds payable are reported net 
of the applicable bond premium or discounts.  Bond issuance costs are expensed immediately. 
 
In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period.  The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources.  Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources 
while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses.  Issuance costs, whether or not 
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures. 
 
Encumbrances 
 
The City does not use encumbrance accounting. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Budgetary and Budgetary Accounting 
 
Budgets are adopted annually for the general funds, special revenue funds, capital funds, debt service 
funds, and enterprise funds.  Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device 
during the year for these funds.  The annual budgets are prepared on the basis of accounting utilized by 
the fund. 
 
Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level.  The City Manager is 
authorized to make budget transfers between accounts within any fund.  All revisions must be reported to 
the City Council. 
 
Use of Estimates 
 
The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts and disclosures.  Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates. 
 
Classification of Net Position 
 
In the government-wide financial statements, net position is classified in the following categories: 
 

Net investment in capital assets – This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, 
into one component of net position.  Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt 
that are attributable to the acquisition, construction or improvement of these assets reduce this 
category. 
 
Restricted net position – This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors, 
grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law 
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  Additionally, this category presents 
restrictions placed on the categories of capital projects, and specific projects and programs as 
established by the City Council.  
 
Unrestricted net position – This category represents the net position of the City, which is not 
restricted for any project or other purpose. 
 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available, restricted resources are depleted first 
before the unrestricted resources are used. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position (Continued) 
 
Fund Balance 
 
Fund Balance Classification:  The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based 
on classifications that comprise a hierarchy that is based primarily on the extent to which the City is 
bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in the respective governmental 
funds can be spent.  The classifications used in the governmental fund financial statements are as 
follows: 
 

 Nonspendable:  This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are 
either (a) not in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. 
 

 Restricted:  This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the 
use of the resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), 
grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments, or (b) imposed by law through 
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.  
 

 Committed:  This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes 
pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council.  These amounts cannot be 
used for any other purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by 
taking the same type of action (ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were 
initially committed.  This classification also includes contractual obligations to the extent that 
existing resources have been specifically committed for use in satisfying those contractual 
requirements. 
 

 Assigned:  This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be 
used for a specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed.  This intent can be 
expressed by the City Council or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the 
Finance Director through the budgetary process.  This classification also includes the remaining 
positive fund balance for all governmental funds except for the General Fund. 

 
 Unassigned:  This classification includes any negative residual amounts that may exist as a result 

of expenditures incurred for specific purposes in excess of amounts restricted, committed or 
assigned to those purposes. 
 

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then 
assigned resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend 
unassigned resources first to defer the use of these other classified funds. 
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NOTE 1 – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 
 
New Pronouncements 
 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 69 
 
In January 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 69, Government Combinations and Disposals of 
Government Operations.  The objective of this Statement is to establish accounting and financial 
reporting standards related to government combinations and disposals of government operations.  The 
Statement requires disclosure to be made about government combinations and disposals of government 
operations to enable financial statement users to evaluate the nature and financial effects of those 
transactions.  The requirements of this Statement are effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 
2015. 
 
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 70 
 
In April 2013, GASB issued Statement No. 70, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Nonexchange 
Financial Guarantees.  The objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by 
state and local governments that extend and receive nonexchange financial guarantees.  The 
requirements of this Statement are effective for the City’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2014. 
 

NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
The City follows the practice of pooling cash and investments of all funds.  Interest income earned on 
pooled cash and investments is allocated monthly to the various funds based on the month-end cash and 
investment balances. 
 
Summary of Deposits and Investments 
 
A reconciliation of the City’s deposit and investment balances as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 
Cash on hand 1,350$                
Deposits with financial institutions 1,348,196           
Investments 12,156,025         

Total cash and investments 13,505,571$       

Government-Wide:
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 12,067,767$       
Cash with fiscal agent 808,024              

Fiduciary Funds:
Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investments 629,780              

Total cash and investments 13,505,571$       
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS 
 
Investments Authorized by the California Government Code and the City’s Investment Policy 
 
The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California 
Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more restrictive).  The table also identifies 
certain provisions of the California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy, where more 
restrictive) that address interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.  This table does not 
address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustees that are governed by the provision of debt 
agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the 
City’s investment policy. 
 
Securities of the U.S. Government, or its agencies Local agency investment fund deposits (state pool)
Certificates of deposit (or time deposits) placed with Passbook savings account demand deposits

  commercial banks and/or savings & loan companies Small business administration loans
Negotiable certificates of deposit Repurchase agreements
Bankers' acceptances Reverse repurchase agreements
Commercial paper  
 

Investments Authorized by the Debt Agreements 
 
Investments of debt proceeds held by the bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt 
agreements rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code or the City’s 
investment policy.  The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments 
held by bond trustee.  The table also identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address 
interest rate risks, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. 
 

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage of Investment in

Authorized Investment Type Maturity Portfolio On Issuer

U.S. Treasury Bonds/Bills None None None
U.S. Government Agency Bonds None None None
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 365 days None None
Time Certificates of Deposit 365 days None None
Banker's Acceptances 365 days None None
Commercial Paper 365 days None None
Money Market Fund None None None  
 
All City investment activities were within State statutes and the City’s investment policy. 
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Interest Rate Risk 
 
Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment.  Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value 
to changes in market interest rates.  One of the ways the City manages its exposure to interest rate risk is 
by maintaining funds in liquid, short-term investments which can be converted to cash when necessary to 
meet disbursement requirements. 
 
Information about the sensitivity of the fair values of the City’s investments (including investments held by 
bond trustee) to market interest rate fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the 
distribution of the City’s investments by maturity: 
 

12 Months 13 to 24 25 to 60 More than 60
Investment Type Total or Less Months Months Months

State investment pool 11,678,730$     11,678,730$    -$                    -$                  -$                     
RMA investment pool 134,245            134,245           -                      -                    -                       
Held by bond trustee:

Money market funds 343,050            343,050           -                      -                    -                       

Total 12,156,025$     12,156,025$    -$                    -$                  -$                     

Remaining Maturity (in Months)

 

Credit Risk 
 
Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of 
the investment.  This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical 
rating organization.  Presented below is the minimum rating required (where applicable) by the California 
Government Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end 
for each investment type.  The column marked “exempt from disclosure” identifies those investment types 
for which GASB No. 40 does not require disclosure as to credit risk: 
 

Exempt from
Investment Type Total Disclosure AAA Aaa-mf Not Rated

State investment pool 11,678,730$     -$                     -$                    -$                  11,678,730$    
RMA investment pool 134,245            -                       -                      -                    134,245           
Held by bond trustee:

Money market funds 343,050            -                       -                      343,050         -                       

Total 12,156,025$     -$                     -$                    343,050$       11,812,975$    

Rating as of Year-End
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NOTE 2 – CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) 
 
Concentration of Credit Risk 
 
The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any one 
issuer beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code.  The City does not have any 
investments in any one issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment 
pools) that represent 5% or more of total City’s investments. 
 
Custodial Credit Risk 
 
Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial 
institution, a City will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities 
that are in possession of an outside party.  The custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the 
event of the failure of the counterpart (e.g. broker-dealer) to a transaction, a City will not be able to 
recover the value of its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party.  The 
California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain legal or policy requirements 
that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits or investments, other than the following 
provision for deposits:  The California Government Code requires that a financial institution secure 
deposits made by the state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool 
held by a depository regulated under the state law (unless so waived by the government unit).  The 
market value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount 
deposited by the public agencies. 
 
GASB Statement No. 40 requires the following disclosure be made with respect to custodial credit risk 
relating to deposits and investments. 
 
As of June 30, 2013, the carrying amount of the City’s bank deposits was $1,348,198, and the respective 
bank balances totaled $951,554.  All bank balances were insured through the Federal Depository 
Insurance Company (FDIC).  Of the total bank balance, $250,000 was insured through the Federal 
Depository Insurance Company (FDIC).  The remaining $1,098,198 was collateralized with pooled 
securities held by the financial institution’s trust department.  These securities are held in the name of the 
financial institution and not that of the City. 
 
Local Agency Investment Fund 
 
The City participates in an external investment pool, as defined by the Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) Statement No. 31, by way of its funds on deposit in the Local Agency Investment Fund 
(LAIF) managed by the State of California Treasurer and is not registered with the Securities and 
Exchange Commission.  These funds are pooled with those of other agencies in the State and invested in 
accordance with State guidelines.  The value of the City’s shares in the LAIF that may be withdrawn is 
determined on an amortized costs basis, which may be different from the fair value of the City’s position 
in the pool.  The City’s portion of the June 30, 2013 balance was $11,678,730.  A breakdown of the 
investments included in the balance is not available at the balance sheet date. 
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NOTE 3 – RECEIVABLES 
 
Receivables as of June 30, 2013 consisted of the following for the governmental funds: 
 

General
Fund

Housing 
Authority
Special

Revenue Fund

Community 
Development 
Block Grant

Special
Revenue Fund

Home
Program 
Special 

Revenue
Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total 
Governmental 

Funds

Receivables:
Taxes 30,965$         -$                    -$                     -$                   193,877$       224,842$       
Grants -                     -                      144,867           -                     -                     144,867         
Interest 791                69,501            112,411           494,867         1,573             679,143         
Other 228,385         -                      13,920             -                     41,516           283,821         
Notes -                     106,831          987,165           1,825,794      88,535           3,008,325      

Receivables, net 260,141$       176,332$        1,258,363        2,320,661$    325,501$       4,340,998$    

 

Receivables as of June 30, 2013 consisted of the following for the enterprise funds: 

 
Water Sewer Refuse Transit Storm Drain
Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Total

Receivables:
Accounts 710,150$       207,905$        302,820$         608,136$       62,363$         1,891,374$    
Interest 3,308             403                 90                    389                103                4,293             
Taxes -                     -                      -                       186,853         -                     186,853         
Other 18,020           12,901            1,058               -                     -                     31,979           

Allowance for uncollectibles (32,287)          (8,906)             (13,627)            -                     (1,895)            (56,715)          

Receivables, net 699,191$       212,303$        290,341$         795,378$       60,571$         2,057,784$    
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NOTE 4 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS 
 
Due To and Due From Other Funds 
 
Due to/from balances have primarily been recorded when funds overdraw their share of pooled cash.  
Activities within fund types have been eliminated within the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Current interfund balances arise in the normal course of business and are expected to be repaid shortly 
after the end of the fiscal year. 
 

Due From Due To

Governmental Funds
Major Funds:

General Fund 88,313$            -$                     
Enterprise Funds

Major Funds:

Water Fund -                       49,266              
Sewer Fund 20,815              -                       
Refuse Fund 24,633              -                       
Storm Drain Fund 3,818                -                       

Fiduciary funds -                       88,313              

Total 137,579$         137,579$          
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NOTE 4 – INTERFUND TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 
 
Long-Term Interfund Advances 
 
At June 30, 2013, the funds below have made advances that were not expected to be repaid in one year  
or less. 
 

Receivable Payable
Funds Funds

Enterprise Funds
Major Funds:

Water Fund 373,900$          -$                     

Storm Drain Fund -                       373,900            

Total 373,900$         373,900$          
 

 
Transfers In and Transfers Out 
 
With the City Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another.  The purpose 
of the majority of transfers is to reimburse a fund that has made expenditures on behalf of another fund.  
Transfers within fund types have been eliminated with the government-wide financial statements. 
 
Transfers in and transfers out consisted of the following as of June 30, 2013: 
 

Transfers In Transfers Out
Governmental Funds

Major Funds:
General Fund 433,873$          333,173$          
Transportation and Street Special Revenue Fund 250,965            185,705            

Nonmajor Funds:
Economic Development Loan Programs Special Revenue Fund -                       85,960              
Public Safety Special Revenue Fund -                       80,000              

Total 684,838$         684,838$          
 

 



CITY OF CORCORAN 
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

40 

NOTE 5 – NOTES RECEIVABLE / UNAVAILABLE REVENUE 
 
Notes receivable consisted of the following as of June 30, 2013: 
 

Nonmajor Funds

Housing
Authority
Special

Revenue Fund

Community 
Development 
Block Grant 

Special
Revenue Fund

HOME
Program
Special

Revenue Fund

Economic 
Development 

Research
Loan Program

Special
Revenue Fund Total

Loans receivable under the Business
Revolving Loan Program. -$                     -$                    -$                      88,535$              88,535$           

Loans receivable under the Community
Development Block Grant Program,
secured by deeds of trust on the
rehabilitated properties.            106,831           987,165                         -                           -          1,093,996 

Loans receivable under the HOME Grant
Program, secured by deeds of trust on the
rehabilitated properties. -                       -                      1,825,794         -                          1,825,794        

Total notes receivable 106,831$         987,165$        1,825,794$       88,535$              3,008,325$      

Major Funds

 

Program disbursements are recorded as expenditures in the year the loans are made to participants even 
though the amounts will be recovered as the loans are repaid.  The City maintains detailed records of 
these loans and records loan principal and interest payments as program revenues in the year such 
payments are received.  Loans recorded as receivable are “performing” loans with monthly/annual 
activity. 
 
The deferred payment loan receivables under the Community Development Block Grant Programs, 
HOME Program, the State Deferred Loan Program, and Community Redevelopment Housing Set-Aside 
Funds are not required to be paid back until the participating homeowner sells, transfers title to the 
rehabilitated property, or discontinues residence in the dwelling, at which time the full amount of the 
deferred loan is due.  Deferred payment loans are “non-performing” loans and are not recorded as assets 
in the financial statements.  Such loans totaled $9,886,808 as of June 30, 2013. 
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS 
 
Capital assets activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013

Governmental Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land 502,027$         -$                    -$                     502,027$         
Construction in progress 675,295           -                      (5,259)              670,036           

Infrastructure in progress 15,706             99,320            -                       115,026           

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,193,028        99,320            (5,259)              1,287,089        

Capital assets being depreciated:

Buildings and other improvements 6,556,142        53,064            -                       6,609,206        
Machinery and equipment 2,084,949        8,129              (17,545)            2,075,533        
Infrastructure 6,228,746        -                      5,259               6,234,005        

Vehicles 1,095,212        88,530            (188,657)          995,085           

Total capital assets being depreciated 15,965,049      149,723          (200,943)          15,913,829      

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and other improvements (2,281,790)       (215,488)         -                       (2,497,278)       
Machinery and equipment (1,620,089)       (132,868)         17,545             (1,735,412)       
Infrastructure (659,394)          (156,688)         -                       (816,082)          

Vehicles (914,274)          (38,968)           165,217           (788,025)          

Total accumulated depreciation (5,475,547)       (544,012)         182,762           (5,836,797)       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 10,489,502      (394,289)         (18,181)            10,077,032      

Governmental activities capital assets, net 11,682,530$    (294,969)$       (23,440)$          11,364,121$    

 
Depreciation expense on capital assets was charged to the governmental functions as follows: 
 
Governmental Activities:

General government 126,790$         
Community development 3,811               
Public safety 124,403           
Public works 187,677           
Parks and recreation 101,331           

Total 544,012$        
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NOTE 6 – CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) 
 
Capital assets activity of the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013

Business-Type Activities:

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 985,983$         -$                    -$                     985,983$         

Construction in progress 107,975           760,762          -                       868,737           

Total capital assets not being depreciated 1,093,958        760,762          -                       1,854,720        

Capital assets being depreciated:

Utility systems 45,136,009      32,325            -                       45,168,334      
Machinery and equipment 1,483,892        33,306            (6,078)              1,511,120        

Vehicles 1,525,759        11,285            (70,019)            1,467,025        

Total capital assets being depreciated 48,145,660      76,916            (76,097)            48,146,479      

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Utility systems (17,654,191)     (1,315,596)      -                       (18,969,787)     
Machinery and equipment (826,661)          (108,230)         3,039               (931,852)          

Vehicles (1,339,820)       (52,304)           37,901             (1,354,223)       

Total accumulated depreciation (19,820,672)     (1,476,130)      40,940             (21,255,862)     

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 28,324,988      (1,399,214)      (35,157)            26,890,617      

Business-type activities capital assets, net 29,418,946$    (638,452)$       (35,157)$          28,745,337$    

 

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type functions as follows: 
 
Business-Type Activities:

Water 1,035,853$      
Sewer 274,564           
Refuse 2,659               
Transit 70,195             

Storm Drain 92,859             

Total 1,476,130$       
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NOTE 7 – COMPENSATED ABSENCES 
 
The City’s policy relating to compensated absences is described in Note 1.  As shown in the table below, 
the long-term portion of this debt, amounting to $221,001 for governmental activities and $6,319 for 
business-type activities at June 30, 2013, is expected to be paid in future years from future resources. 
 
Because of the nature of compensated absences and uncertainty over when vacations will be taken, a 
statement of debt service requirements to maturity of compensated absences has not been presented.  At 
June 30, 2013, the balance is $423,147 for governmental activities, and $33,745 for the business-type 
activities. 
 

Amounts
Amounts Due in

Balance Balance Due Within More Than
July 1, 2012 Incurred Satisfied June 30, 2013 One Year One Year

Governmental Activities:

Compensated absences 366,860$     200,495$     (144,208)$   423,147$       202,146$     221,001$     

Business-Type Activities:

Compensated absences 29,432$       42,213$       (37,900)$     33,745$         27,426$       6,319$         

 

NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT 
 
The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for governmental activities for the year 
ended June 30, 2013: 
 

Amounts
Amounts Due in

Balance Incurred Satisfied Balance Due Within More Than
July 1, 2012 or Issued or Matured June 30, 2013 One Year One Year

Governmental Activities:

Certificates of participation 300,000$         -$                  (50,000)$        250,000$         50,000$         200,000$          

Total governmental activities 300,000$         -$                  (50,000)$        250,000$         50,000$         200,000$          
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
Certificates of Participation 
 
The Certificates of Participation were issued on April 15, 1993, by Corcoran Joint Powers Finance 
Authority (CJPFA) at an interest rate of 8.75% to finance the acquisition of land and construction of a 
storm drainage system.  The Certificates of Participation mature on June 1, 2016.  The Certificates of 
Participation are secured by annual base rental lease payments payable by the City for use of the storm 
drainage system.  The CJPFA was required under the terms of the trust agreement to deposit $76,000 
into a reserve fund. 
 

Fiscal Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2014 50,000$                20,781$               70,781$               
2015 60,000                  16,187                 76,187                 

2016 140,000                10,937                 150,937               

Totals 250,000$              47,905$              297,905$            

1992 Certificates of Participation

 
 
The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for business-type activities for the year 
ended June 30, 2013: 
 

Amounts
Amounts Due in

Balance Incurred Satisfied Balance Due Within More Than
July 1, 2012 or Issued or Matured June 30, 2013 One Year One Year

Business-Type Activities:

Davis-Grunsky Loan (Water Fund) 447,024$         -$                  (59,527)$        387,497$         61,111$         326,386$          

2003 Certificates of Participation 5,020,000        -                    (5,020,000)     -                       -                     -                       

2003 Certificates of Participation -
  Unamortized Bond Discounts (64,094)            -                    64,094           -                       -                     -                       

2008 Certificates of Participation 19,065,000      -                    (1,385,000)     17,680,000      415,000         17,265,000       

2008 Certificates of Participation -
  Deferred Refunding (377,576)          (1)  -                    16,417           (361,160)          -                     (361,160)          

2008 Bond Discount (140,406)          -                    6,327             (134,079)          -                     (134,079)          

State Water Quality Control Fund 
  Loans (Sewer Fund) 107,288           -                    (32,480)          74,808             33,649           41,159              

2012 A Bonds -                       4,835,000     -                     4,835,000        185,000         4,650,000         

Total business-type activities 24,057,236$    4,835,000$   (6,410,169)$   22,482,066$    694,760$       21,787,306$     

(1)                                                                                     1,031,721        Prior year balance
(654,145)          Adjustment related to GASB 65 -                          

377,576           
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
Notes Payable 
 
Davis-Grunsky Loan (Water Fund) 
 
The Davis-Grunsky Contract D-GLC43 payable to the State of California, Department of Water Resources 
was for improvements made in fiscal year 1976 to the City’s water system.  The loan is to be repaid in 
annual payments of approximately $70,000, including interest at 2.5% through fiscal year 2019.  Under 
terms of the loan, the City was required to establish a reserve of $69,706 in the City’s Water Fund. 
 

Fiscal Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2014 61,111$                8,278$                 69,389$               
2015 62,497                  6,847                   69,344                 
2016 63,883                  5,382                   69,265                 
2017 65,269                  3,883                   69,152                 
2018 66,655                  2,348                   69,003                 
2019 68,042                  786                      68,828                 

Totals 387,457$              27,524$               414,981$             

Davis-Grunsky Loan (Water Fund)

 
 

State Water Quality Control Fund Loans (Sewer Fund) 
 
The State Water Quality Control Fund has two loans with the City of $568,192 and $200,000.  The larger 
loan is payable in annual installments of $36,342 including interest at 3.6%.  The final payment of $6,342 
is due July 2016.  The smaller loan is payable in annual installments of $14,200, including interest at 
3.6%.  The final payment is due February 2016. 
 

Fiscal Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2014 33,649$                2,693$                 36,342$               
2015 34,860                  1,482                   36,342                 

2016 6,299                    43                        6,342                   

Totals 74,808$                4,218$                 79,026$               

State Water Quality Control Fund Loans
(Sewer Fund)
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
2003 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund) 
 
The 2003 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund) was issued on July 1, 2003, in the amount of 
$5,915,000.  These Certificates paid off the existing Farmers Home Administration Loan and also 
provided for the construction and acquisition of capital improvements to the City’s municipal water 
system.  Certificates authorized and issued have interest rates ranging from 2.00% to 4.25% and mature 
July 1, 2035.  The outstanding principal amount of $5,020,000 for the 2003 Certificates of Participation 
was paid off in September 2012. 
 
2008 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund) 
 
The 2008 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund) were issued on March 27, 2008, in the amount of 
$19,900,000.  These certificates provided for the refunding of the 2005 Certificates of Participation (Water 
System Project).  Certificates authorized and issued have a variable rate of interest reset each 
Wednesday and mature July 1, 2036. 
 
The 2008 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund) were restructured in September 2012.  The Reserve 
Fund was eliminated and outstanding debt was reduced by $940,000.  The synthetic fixed rate structure 
of the bonds was maintained and the underlying letter of credit with Union Bank was renewed through 
2016.  The estimated savings in debt service over the life of the bonds is $2.3 million based on an 
average interest rate of 4.70%. 
 

Fiscal Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2014 415,000$              657,696$             1,072,696$          

2015 430,000                642,258               1,072,258            

2016 450,000                626,262               1,076,262            

2017 475,000                609,522               1,084,522            

2018 495,000                591,852               1,086,852            

2019-2023 2,855,000             2,664,450            5,519,450            

2024-2028 3,590,000             2,081,154            5,671,154            

2029-2033 4,525,000             1,347,198            5,872,198            

2034-2037 4,445,000             422,964               4,867,964            

Totals 17,680,000$         9,643,356$          27,323,356$        

2008 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund)

 
 

Note:  Assumes 3.72% interest rate and does not include Letter of Credit or remarketing fees. 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
2008 Certificates of Participation (Water Fund) (Continued) 
 
Objective of the interest rate swap.  As a means to lower its borrowing costs, when compared against 
fixed-rate bonds at the time of issuance in October 2005, the City entered into an interest rate swap in 
connection with the issuance of the $21.9 million 2005 Certificates of Participation.  The intention of the 
swap was to effectively change the City’s variable interest rate on the bonds to a synthetic fixed rate of 
3.655 percent (exclusive of remarketing fees).  The swap agreement was continued as part of the 2008 
refunding COPs. 
 
Terms.  Under the swap, the City pays the counterparty, Piper Jaffray Financial Products Inc. (“the 
Counterparty”) a fixed payment based upon a negotiated rate of 3.673% and receives a variable payment 
computed as 63% of the London Interbank Offered Rate (LIBOR) plus 30 basis points (.30%).  The 
amount that the City receives under the swap agreement is structured to equal the amount that it pays on 
its Certificates, thus cancelling each other out and leaving the fixed rate portion amount to be paid under 
the swap as the net overall payment.  The City also pays a letter of credit and remarketing fees on the 
variable rate bonds (totaling .50% annually).  The swap has a notional amount of $19.9 million and the 
associated variable-rate bond has a $19.9 million principal amount.  Starting in 2008, the notional value of 
the swap and the principal amount of the associated debt decline until the debt is completely retired in 
2036.  The bonds and the related swap agreement will mature on July 1, 2036. 
 
Fair Value.  The Counterparty informed the City that as of June 30, 2013, the swap had a fair value of 
($3,037,308).  The Counterparty states that the valuation is based on a proprietary model. 
 
Credit Risk.  As of June 30, 2013, the City was not exposed to credit risk because the swap had a net 
negative fair value.  This negative amount may increase if interest rates decrease in the future.  However, 
if interest rates increase and the fair value of the swap become positive, the City will be exposed to credit 
risk, to a maximum possible loss equivalent to the swap’s fair value.  The swap Counterparty was rated 
AA by Standard & Poor’s on October 1, 2005.  To mitigate the potential for credit risk, if the 
Counterparty’s credit quality falls below the AA rating, the fair value of the swap will be fully collateralized 
by the Counterparty with U.S. government securities.  Collateral would be posted with a third-party 
custodian. 
 
Basis Risk.  Basis risk is the risk that the interest rate paid by the City on the underlying variable rate 
bonds to bondholders temporarily differs from the variable swap rate received from the Counterparty.  
The City bears basis risk on its swap.  The swap has basis risk since the City receives a percentage of 
LIBOR to offset the actual variable bond rate the City pays on its bonds.  The City is exposed to basis risk 
should the floating rate that it receives on the swap be less than the actual variable rate the City pays on 
the bonds.  Depending on the magnitude and duration of any basis risk shortfall, the expected costs of 
the basis risk may vary. 
 
Termination Risk.  The derivative contract uses the International Swap Dealers Association Master 
Agreement, which includes standard termination events, such as failure to pay and bankruptcy.  The 
Schedule to the Master Agreement includes an “additional termination event.”  That is, the swap may be 
terminated by the City if the Counterparty’s credit quality rating falls below “A-“ as issued by Fitch Ratings 
or Standard & Poor’s or “A3” as issued by Moody’s Investors Service.  The City and the Counterparty may 
terminate the swap if the other party fails to perform under the terms of the contract.  If the swap is 
terminated, the variable-rate bond would no longer carry a synthetic fixed interest rate.  Also, if at the time 
of termination the swap has a negative fair value, the City, if it was the defaulting party under the terms of 
the swap, would be liable to the Counterparty for a payment equal to the swap’s fair value. 
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NOTE 8 – LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued) 
 
The 2012A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds  
 
The 2012A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds were issued September 26, 2012.  These bonds provided 
for the refunding of the 2003 Certificates of Participations that were issued on July 1, 2003.  The City is 
not funding a debt service reserve account for these bonds.  Certificates authorized and issued have 
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 4.00% and mature July 1, 2035. 
 

Fiscal Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2014 185,000$              124,581$             309,581$             
2015 150,000                157,538               307,538               
2016 155,000                153,038               308,038               
2017 160,000                148,388               308,388               
2018 165,000                143,588               308,588               

2019-2022 710,000                523,350               1,233,350            
2023-2027 1,005,000             527,175               1,532,175            
2028-2032 1,185,000             349,669               1,534,669            
2033-2036 1,120,000             111,963               1,231,963            

Totals 4,835,000$           2,239,287$          7,074,287$          

2012A Water Revenue Refunding Bonds

 
 

NOTE 9 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
 
The City implemented GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, 
Deferred Inflows of Resources, and Net Position and GASB Statement No. 65 Items Previously Reported 
as Assets and Liabilities as of June 30, 2013. 
 
GASB 63 provides financial reporting guidance for deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources.  This Statement also amends the net asset reporting requirements and other pronouncements 
by incorporating deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources into the definitions of 
the required components of the residual measure and by renaming that measure as net position, rather 
than net assets. 
 
GASB 65 establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that reclassify, as deferred outflows of 
resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and 
liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were 
previously reported as assets and liabilities. 
 
In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
outflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, 
represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will 
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then.  The City has one item to 
report in this category, which is $3,037,308 related to a derivative instrument – interest rate swap. 
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NOTE 9 – DEFERRED OUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES (Continued) 
 
In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred 
inflows of resources.  This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents 
an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized 
as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.  The City has only two types, derivative instrument - 
interest rate swap and unavailable revenues.  The City reports $3,037,308 related to a derivative instrument - 
interest rate swap.  The unavailable revenues arise only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that 
qualifies for reporting in this category.  Accordingly, the item, unavailable revenues, is reported only in the 
governmental funds balance sheet.  Deferred inflows of resources reported in the governmental funds for 
unavailable revenues are as follows: 
 

General
Fund

Housing 
Authority
Special

Revenue Fund

Community 
Development 
Block Grant

Special
Revenue Fund

Home Program 
Special

Revenue Fund

Other 
Governmental 

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

Loans -$                176,325$       1,099,469$     2,320,588$    88,766$        3,685,148$     
Intergovermental revenue 16,887        -                    144,867          -                     -                    161,754          
Miscellaneous revenue -                  -                    13,872            -                     26,245          40,117            

16,887$      176,325$       1,258,208$     2,320,588$    115,011$      3,887,019$     

 

NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN 
 
Plan Description 
 
The City’s defined benefit pension plans, the Miscellaneous Plan and the Safety Plan, provide retirement and 
disability benefits, annual cost-of-living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  
The Miscellaneous and Safety Plans are part of the Public Agency portion of the California Public Employees 
Retirement System (CalPERS), an agent multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by 
CalPERS, which acts a common investment and administrative agent for participating public employers 
within the State of California.  State statutes within the Public Employees’ Retirement Law establish a menu 
of benefit provisions as well as other requirements.  The City selects optional benefit provisions from the 
benefit menu by contract with CalPERS and adopts those benefits through local ordinance.  CalPERS issues 
a separate comprehensive annual financial report.  Copies of the CalPERS annual financial report may be 
obtained from the CalPERS Executive Office, 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA 95814. 
 
Funding Policy 
 
Active plan members in the Safety and Miscellaneous Plans are required to contribute 9 percent and 7 
percent of their annual covered salary, respectively.  The City is required to contribute the actuarially 
determined remaining amounts necessary to fund the benefits for its members.  The actuarial methods and 
assumptions used are those adopted by the CalPERS Board of Administration.  The required employer 
contribution rate for fiscal year 2012-2013 was 32.116% and 10.116% for public safety and miscellaneous 
employees, respectively.  The contribution requirements of the plan members are established by State 
statute and the employer contribution rate is established and may be amended by CalPERS.  Therefore, a 
rate of zero is charged for the first $133.33 per month. 
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NOTE 10 – DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued) 
 
Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Obligation 
 
For the fiscal year 2012/2013, the City’s combined annual pension cost of $618,198 was equal to the 
annual requirement contribution.  The current year’s required contribution was determined as part of the 
June 30, 2009 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal actuarial cost method with the contributions 
determined as a percent of pay.  The actuarial assumptions included: (a) 7.75% investment rate of return 
(net of administrative expenses); (b) projected salary increases that vary by duration of service ranging 
from 3.25% to 13.15% for members of both plans; and (c) 3.25% cost-of-living adjustment.  Both (a) and 
(b) include an inflation component of 3.0%.  The actuarial value of the Miscellaneous and Safety Plans’ 
assets was determined using a technique that smoothes the effect of short-term volatility in the market 
value of investments over a two to five-year period depending on the size of investment gains and/or 
losses.  The Miscellaneous and Safety Plans’ unfunded actuarial liabilities are being amortized as a level 
percentage of projected payrolls on a closed basis.  The remaining amortization period of June 30, 2013 
was 13 years. 
 
The City’s annual pension costs (APC) and net pension obligation as of and for the year ended June 30, 
2013 were as follows: 

Fiscal Years Ending
Annual Pension 

Costs (APC)
Percent of APC 

Contributed
Net Pension 
Obligation

Miscellaneous Plan
6/30/2010 217,257$            100% -$                 
6/30/2011 330,301$            100% -$                 
6/30/2012 228,474$            100% -$                 

Safety Plan
6/30/2010 330,201$            100% -$                 
6/30/2011 490,370$            100% -$                 
6/30/2012 389,724$            100% -$                  

 
Funded Status and Progress 
 
The funded status of each plan as of the most recent actuarial valuation date presented below related to 
the plan as a whole, of which the City is one participating employer. 
 

Actuarial Valuation 
Date

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL)

Actuarial Value of 
Assets

Unfunded AAL 
(UAAL)

Funded 
Ratio Covered Payroll

UAAL as of % of 
Covered Payroll

6/30/2012
Miscellaneous 4,175,139,166$      3,686,598,343$      488,540,823$       88.3% 757,045,663$       64.5%
Safety 2,183,549,942$      1,896,139,291$      287,410,651$       86.8% 232,078,083$       123.8%

 
The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, 
presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets are increasing or 
decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits. 
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NOTE 11 – RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which 
establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA).  The relationship 
between the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the City for financial 
reporting purposes. 
 
The City is covered for the first $1,000,000 of each general liability claim and $250,000 of each worker’s 
compensation claim through the CSJVRMA.  The City has the right to receive dividends or the obligation to 
pay assessments based on a formula which, among other expenses, charges the City’s account for liability 
losses under $50,000 and worker’s compensation losses under $100,000.  The CSJVRMA participates in 
an excess pool which provides worker’s compensation coverage from $250,000 to $500,000 and 
purchases excess insurance above the $500,000 to the statutory limit. 
 
The CSJVRMA is a consortium of fifty-four (54) cities in San Joaquin Valley, California.  It was established 
under the provisions of California Government Code Section 6500 et. seq.  The CSJVRMA is governed by 
a Board of Directors, which meets 3-4 times per year, consisting of one member appointed by each 
member city.  The day-to-day business is handled by a management group employed by the CSJVRMA. 
 
At the termination of the joint venture agreement and after all claims have been settled, any excess or 
deficit will be divided among the cities in proportion to the aggregate amount of contribution made by each. 
 
The following is a summary of financial information of the CSJVRMA as of and for the fiscal year ended 
June 30, 2013: 
 

Total assets 82,190,005$       
Total liabilities 66,304,596         

Member's equity 15,885,409$       

Total revenues 30,744,973$       
Total expenses 27,142,583         

Excess of expenses (loss) over income 3,602,390$         
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NOTE 12 – COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
General Liability 

There are various claims and legal actions pending against the City for which no provision has been 
made in the financial statements.  In the opinion of the City Attorney and City Management, liabilities 
arising from these claims and legal actions, if any, will not be material to these financial statements. 
 
Federal Awards and Grants 

The City participates in grant programs which are governed by various rules and regulation of the grantor 
agencies.  Costs charged to the respective grant programs are subject to audit and adjustment by the 
grantor agencies; therefore, to the extent that the City has not complied with the rules and regulations 
governing the grants, refunds of any moneys received may be required and collectability of any related 
receivable may be impaired.  In the opinion of the City, there are no significant contingent liabilities 
relating to the compliance with the rules and regulations governing the respective grants; therefore, no 
provision has been recorded in the accompanying combined financial statements for such contingencies. 
 

NOTE 13 – STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY 

 
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations 
 
The following funds incurred expenditures in excess of appropriations in the following amounts for the 
year ended June 30, 2013: 
 
General Fund: 
 Current: 
  Parks and recreation $11,806 
 Capital outlay: 
  General government $8,198 
 Other financing sources (uses): 
  Transfers out $33,173 
 
Community Development Block Grant Special Revenue Fund: 
 Other financing sources (uses): 
  Transfers out $185,704 
 
Housing Authority Special Revenue Fund: 
 Current: 
  Community development $1,227,413 
 
The excess expenditures were covered by available fund balance in the funds.  
 
Deficit Fund Balance 
 
The Housing Authority fund had a negative fund balance; however, the deficit was covered by available 
fund balance in the General Fund. 
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NOTE 14 – SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
Segment information for the Water Fund for the year ended June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Water Fund

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
Assets:

Current assets 7,219,401$        
Noncurrent assets 23,566,426        

Total assets 30,785,827        

Liabilities:
Current liabilities 1,126,654          
Noncurrent liabilities 21,752,466        

Total liabilities 22,879,120        

Net Position:
Net investment in capital assets 785,268             
Restricted 801,224             
Unrestricted 6,320,215          

Total net position 7,906,707$        

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Operating revenues 4,465,387$        
Depreciation expenses (1,278,705)         
Other operating expenses (2,429,738)         

Operating income (loss) 756,944             

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Other nonoperating revenue 582,727             
Investment income (45,600)              
Interest expense (945,466)            

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (408,339)            

Changes in net position 348,605             
Beginning net position 8,362,977          

Prior period adjustment (804,875)            

Ending net position 7,906,707$        

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Net cash provided (used) by:

Operating activities 2,030,611$        
Noncapital financing activities 44,651               
Capital and related financing activities (3,079,692)         

Investing activities (45,021)              

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,049,451)         

Beginning cash and cash equivalents 7,565,288          

Ending cash and cash equivalents 6,515,837$         
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NOTE 15 – PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENTS 
 
During the current year the following prior period adjustments were recorded: 
 
Governmental Activities 
 
The beginning net position in governmental activities was overstated by $30,894 due to the 
overstatement of capital assets of $24,715 and overstatement of revenues of $6,179 in fiscal year 2012.  
To correct these errors, beginning net position in the Governmental Activities was decreased by $30,894. 
 
Governmental Funds 
 
The beginning fund balance in the General Fund was overstated by $6,179 due to overstatement of 
revenues.  To correct these errors, beginning net position in the Governmental Activities was decreased 
by $6,179. 
 
Enterprise Funds 
 
The beginning net position in the Water Enterprise Fund was reduced by $804,875 as a result of 
implementation of GASB Statement No. 65 to eliminate bond issuance costs. 
 

NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND 
 
On January 30, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor Agency for the former 
redevelopment agency in accordance with Assembly Bill 1X26 (the “Bill”) which dissolved all 
redevelopment agencies in the State of California. 
 
Under the control of an oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable 
obligations in existence at the date of dissolution of the redevelopment agency (including the completion 
of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally enforceable contractual commitments). 
 
Successor agencies are only allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay estimated annual 
installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all enforceable 
obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been liquidated. 
 
Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former redevelopment 
agency due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor agency trust under the 
requirements of the Bill.  The City’s position on this issue is not a position of settled law and there is 
considerable uncertainty regarding this issue.  It is reasonably possible that a legal determination may be 
made at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would resolve this issue favorably for the 
City. 
 
After the date of the dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are 
reported in a fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City. 
 
Cash 
 
A reconciliation of the Successor Agency Trust Fund’s cash balances as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 

Cash on hand 298,306$         
Cash with fiscal agent 313,008           

Total cash 611,314$          
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
Capital Assets 
 
Capital assets activity of the Successor Agency Trust Fund as of June 30, 2013 is as follows: 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2012 Increases Decreases June 30, 2013

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land 25,400$           -$                    -$                     25,400$           

Total capital assets not being depreciated 25,400             -                      -                       25,400             

Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings and other improvements 3,352,185        -                      -                       3,352,185        
Infrastructure 1,666,725        -                      -                       1,666,725        

Total capital assets being depreciated 5,018,910        -                      -                       5,018,910        

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and other improvements (1,183,639)       (84,351)           -                       (1,267,990)       

Infrastructure (315,100)          (41,668)           -                       (356,768)          

Total accumulated depreciation (1,498,739)       (126,019)         -                       (1,624,758)       

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 3,520,171        (126,019)         -                       3,394,152        

Governmental activities capital assets, net 3,545,571$      (126,019)$       -$                     3,419,552$      

 

Long-term Debt 
 
The following is a summary of long-term obligation transactions for the Successor Agency Trust Fund at 
June 30, 2013: 
 

Amounts
Amounts Due in

Balance Incurred Satisfied Balance Due Within More Than
7/1/2012 or Issued or Matured 6/30/2013 One Year One Year

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds 3,780,000$   -$               (200,000)$   3,580,000$   205,000$   3,375,000$   
Bond Discount (272,615)       -                 12,161        (260,454)       -                 (260,454)       

Total 3,507,385$   -$               (187,839)$   3,319,546$   205,000$   3,114,546$   
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NOTE 16 – SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FUND (Continued) 
 
2004 Tax Allocation Bonds 
 
The 2004 Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds were issued on November 1, 2004, by the Community 
Redevelopment Agency to refund the Tax Allocation Refunding Bonds, Series 1994 issued by the 
Agency.  Bonds authorized and issued have interest ranging from 1.9% to 5.0% and mature December 1, 
2034. 
 
Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the 2004 Tax Allocation Bonds are as follows:  
 

Fiscal Years Ending Principal Interest Total

2014 205,000$       162,918$       367,918$       
2015 215,000         154,718         369,718         
2016 220,000         146,117         366,117         
2017 230,000         137,208         367,208         
2018 240,000         127,548         367,548         

2019-2022 1,070,000      399,861         1,469,861      
2023-2027 600,000         265,410         865,410         
2028-2032 465,000         154,985         619,985         

2033-2035 335,000         34,250           369,250         

Totals 3,580,000$    1,583,014$   5,163,014$    

2004 Tax Allocation Bonds
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
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SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Both of the City’s defined benefit pension plans, the Miscellaneous Plan and the Safety Plan, are cost-sharing 
multiple employer defined benefit pension plans that provide retirement and disability benefits, annual cost-of-
living adjustments, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.  The information presented below in 
the schedule of funding progress and employer contributions relates to the plan as a whole, of which the City is 
one participating employer. 
 

Actuarial 
Valuation Date

Actuarial Accrued 
Liability (AAL)

Actuarial Value
of Assets

Unfunded AAL 
(UAAL)

Funded 
Ratio Covered Payroll

UAAL as of % 
of Covered 

Payroll

Miscellaneous:
6/30/2010 3,309,064,934$     2,946,408,106$     362,656,828$     89.0% 748,401,352$     48.5%
6/30/2011 3,619,835,876$     3,203,214,899$     416,620,977$     88.5% 759,263,518$     54.9%
6/30/2012 4,175,139,166$     3,686,598,343$     488,540,823$     88.3% 757,045,663$     64.5%

Safety:
6/30/2010 1,915,095,826$     1,628,915,283$     286,180,543$     85.1% 224,562,008$     127.4%
6/30/2011 2,061,923,933$     1,759,286,797$     302,637,136$     85.3% 225,892,222$     126.7%
6/30/2012 2,183,549,942$     1,896,139,291$     287,410,651$     86.8% 232,078,083$     123.8%
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Property taxes 287,262$          287,262$          588,939$          301,677$         
Other taxes 1,473,289         1,473,289         1,435,075         (38,214)            
Licenses and permits 93,600              93,600              109,395            15,795             
Intergovernmental revenues 2,218,506         2,218,506         2,226,872         8,366               
Charges for services 57,693              57,693              78,171              20,478             
Fines and penalties 45,000              45,000              26,544              (18,456)            
Use of money and property -                       -                       441,205            441,205           
Grant drawdowns -                       -                       41,395              41,395             

Miscellaneous -                       -                       96,914              96,914             

Total revenues 4,175,350         4,175,350         5,044,510         869,160           

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government 936,201            936,201            640,069            296,132           
Public safety 3,936,639         3,936,639         3,623,763         312,876           
Public works 231,624            231,624            230,247            1,377               
Parks and recreation 299,087            299,087            310,893            (11,806)            

Capital outlay:

General government -                       -                       8,198                (8,198)              

Public safety -                       -                       3,097                (3,097)              

Total expenditures 5,403,551         5,403,551         4,816,267         587,284           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  (under) expenditures (1,228,201)       (1,228,201)       228,243            1,456,444        

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in (506,000)          (506,000)          433,873            939,873           
Operating transfers out (506,000)          (300,000)          (333,173)          (33,173)            

Total other financing sources (uses) (1,012,000)       (806,000)          100,700            906,700           

Net change in fund balances (2,240,201)       (2,034,201)       328,943            2,363,144        

Fund balances - beginning 4,019,651         4,019,651         4,019,651         -                       

Prior period adjustment (6,179)              (6,179)              (6,179)              -                       

Fund balances - beginning, as restated 4,013,472         4,013,472         4,013,472         -                       

Fund balances - ending 1,773,271$       1,979,271$       4,342,415$       2,363,144$      

Budgeted Amount
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                     -$                     137$                 137$                
Grant drawdowns 354,900            354,900            249,080            (105,820)          
Loan repayments 90,882              90,882              158,000            67,118             

Miscellaneous -                       -                       15,919              15,919             

Total revenues 445,782            445,782            423,136            (22,646)            

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development 523,784            523,784            380,560            143,224           

Total expenditures 523,784            523,784            380,560            143,224           

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  (under) expenditures (78,002)            (78,002)            42,576              120,578           

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Operating transfers in -                       -                       250,965            250,965           
Operating transfers out -                       -                       (185,705)          (185,705)          

Total other financing sources (uses) -                       -                       65,260              65,260             

Net change in fund balances (78,002)            (78,002)            107,836            185,838           

Fund balances - beginning -                       -                       19,481              19,481             

Fund balances - ending (78,002)$          (78,002)$          127,317$          205,319$         

Budgeted Amount
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES – BUDGET AND ACTUAL 
HOME PROGRAM SPECIAL REVENUE FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
Original Final Actual (Negative)

REVENUES
Use of money and property -$                      -$                      692$                  692$                  
Grant drawdowns 317,317             317,317             312,463             (4,854)               
Loan repayments 135,510             135,510             133,212             (2,298)               

Miscellaneous -                        -                        32,130               32,130               

Total revenues 452,827             452,827             478,497             25,670               

EXPENDITURES
Current:

Community development 1,432,938          1,432,938          319,218             1,113,720          

Total expenditures 1,432,938          1,432,938          319,218             1,113,720          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
  (under) expenditures (980,111)           (980,111)           159,279             1,139,390          

Net change in fund balances (980,111)           (980,111)           159,279             1,139,390          

Fund balances - beginning 33,246               33,246               33,246               -                        

Fund balances - ending (946,865)$         (946,865)$         192,525$           1,139,390$        

Budgeted Amount
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 
 

NOTE 1 - BUDGETARY INFORMATION 
 
The City follows the following procedures, annually, in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the 
budgetary comparison schedules: 
 

1. The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the 
following July 1.  The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them. 
 

2. The City Council reviews the proposed budget at specially scheduled sessions, which are open to the 
public.  The Council also conducts a public hearing on the proposed budget to obtain comments from 
interested persons. 
 

3. Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted through passage of an ordinance.  This budget is 
reported as Original Budget in the budgetary comparison schedules. 
 

4. During the fiscal year, changes to the adopted budget may be authorized, as follows: 

a. Items requiring City Council action – appropriation of fund balance reserves; transfers of 
appropriations between funds; appropriation of any non-departmental revenue; new interfund 
loans or advances; and creation of new capital projects or increases to existing capital projects. 
 

b. Items delegated to the City Manager – transfers between departments within funds; 
appropriation of unbudgeted departmental revenues; and approval of transfers which increase 
salary and benefit appropriations. 
 

c. Items delegated to the department head – allocation of departmental appropriations to line item 
level. 

 
5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management tool for all funds.  Annual budgets are 

legally adopted and amended as required for the general, special revenue, and enterprise funds.  
Project length budgets are adopted for the capital projects funds.  All budgets are prepared on a basis 
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and budgetary comparisons for the 
general and major special revenue funds are presented on that basis in the required supplementary 
information.  A debt service payment schedule for the debt service funds is also approved as part of 
the budget process. 
 

6. Budget amounts are reflected after all authorized amendments and revisions.  This budget is reported 
as the Final Budget in the budgetary comparison schedules. 
 

7. For each legally adopted operating budget, expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at 
the activity level.  The legal appropriation basis is at the level called “department”.  A “department” for 
legal appropriation purposes may be a single organization or an entire department having multiple 
organizations within the same fund, or an entire fund. 
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OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
 
The Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources (other 
than expendable trusts or major capital projects) that are legally restricted to expenditure for specified 
purposes.  The City maintains five nonmajor special revenue funds. 
 

The Public Safety Fund is used to account for grant funds received for supplemental public safety 
expenditures, adjudicated cash and other assets seized from drug arrests that are available for police 
department enhancements and revenues and expenditures related to a rail spur study. 
 
The Parks Capital Fund is used to account for residential development tax funds that are restricted 
to acquisition, improvement and expansion of public park, playground and recreation facilities. 
 
The Transportation and Street Special Revenue Fund is to account for sales tax restricted to 
transportation uses, revenues apportioned under the Streets and Highway Code, Sections 2105, 
2106, 2107 and 2107.5 of the State of California, State funds apportioned under the Surface 
Transportation Program, State grant funds apportioned under the Traffic Congestion Relief Program, 
and federal funds apportioned under the Federal Aid Urban Grant.  The City uses these funds for 
Dial-A-Ride/Amtrak Ticket transportation programs and for expenditures related to street construction 
and maintenance. 
 
The Economic Development Loan Programs Fund is used to account for the Business Loan 
Program that provides loans to local businesses unable to obtain other financing. 
 
The Assessment Districts are used to account for two landscape and lighting districts that were 
established for subdivisions to provide for the maintenance to turf areas, shrubs, trees, and irrigations 
systems and walls.   
 

The Debt Service Funds are used to account for the accumulation of resources for the payment of 
principal and interest on general debt of the City. 

 
The Corcoran Joint Powers Finance Authority Fund is used to account for the repayment of debt 
issued by the Corcoran Joint Powers Finance Authority. 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

 Nonmajor 
Special Revenue 

Funds 

 Corcoran Joint 
Powers Finance 
Authority Debt 
Service Fund 

Total
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds

ASSETS
Cash and investments:

Unrestricted 2,193,410$       10,218$            2,203,628$       
Cash with fiscal agent:

Restricted -                        76,506              76,506              
Receivables 325,501            -                        325,501            

Prepaid expenses 4,794                -                        4,794                

Total assets 2,523,705$       86,724$            2,610,429$       

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 27,358$            -$                      27,358$            

Total liabilities 27,358              -                        27,358              

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues 115,011            -                        115,011            

Total deferred inflows of resources 115,011            -                        115,011            

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Debt service  -                        86,724              86,724              
Community development 3                       -                        3                       
Public safety 176,249            -                        176,249            
Transportation and street 2,158,959         -                        2,158,959         
Parks and recreation 49,977              -                        49,977              

Unassigned (3,852)               -                        (3,852)               

Total fund balances 2,381,336         86,724              2,468,060         

Total liabilities and fund balances 2,523,705$       86,724$            2,610,429$        
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

 Nonmajor
Special

Revenue
Funds 

 Corcoran
Joint Powers 

Finance 
Authority Debt 
Service Fund 

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

REVENUES
Property taxes 9,204$               -$                     9,204$               
Use of money and property 6,178                 75,204              81,382               
Fines and penalties 1,091                 -                       1,091                 
Intergovernmental revenues 714,245             -                       714,245             
Grant drawdowns 178,782             -                       178,782             
Repayment of loans 11,592               -                       11,592               

Miscellaneous 37,483               -                       37,483               

Total revenues 958,575             75,204              1,033,779          

EXPENDITURES
Current services:

General government 11,606               2,381                13,987               
Community development 1,440                 -                       1,440                 
Parks and recreation 41,659               -                       41,659               
Public works 524,377             -                       524,377             
Public safety 62,721               -                       62,721               

Capital outlay:
Public works 102,134             -                       102,134             
Public safety 85,434               -                       85,434               
Parks and recreation 12,788               -                       12,788               

Debt service:
Principal retirement -                        50,000              50,000               
Interest and fiscal charges -                        25,156              25,156               

Total expenditures 842,159             77,537              919,696             

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

  (under) expenditures 116,416             (2,333)              114,083             

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers out (165,960)           -                       (165,960)           

Total other financing sources (uses) (165,960)           -                       (165,960)           

Net change in fund balances (49,544)             (2,333)              (51,877)             

Fund balances - beginning 2,430,880          89,057              2,519,937          

Fund balances - ending 2,381,336$        86,724$            2,468,060$        
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Transportation Economic
and Street Development

Public Parks Special Loan Assessment
Safety Capital Revenue Fund Programs Districts Totals

ASSETS

Cash and investments:

Unrestricted 177,577$        50,510$          1,967,583$       (6)$                   (2,254)$            2,193,410$      

Receivables 26,346            29                   209,587            88,775             764                  325,501           

Prepaid expenses -                      -                      4,794                -                       -                       4,794               

Total assets 203,923$        50,539$          2,181,964$       88,769$           (1,490)$            2,523,705$      

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable 1,429$            562$               23,005$            -$                     2,362$             27,358$           

Total liabilities 1,429              562                 23,005              -                       2,362               27,358             

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Unavailable revenues 26,245            -                      -                        88,766             -                       115,011           

Total deferred inflows of resources 26,245            -                      -                        88,766             -                       115,011           

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for:

Community development -                      -                      -                        3                      -                       3                      
Public safety 176,249          -                      -                        -                       -                       176,249           
Transportation and street -                      -                      2,158,959         -                       -                       2,158,959        
Parks and recreation -                      49,977            -                        -                       -                       49,977             

Unassigned -                      -                      -                        -                       (3,852)              (3,852)              

Total fund balances 176,249          49,977            2,158,959         3                      (3,852)              2,381,336        

Total liabilities and fund balances 203,923$        50,539$          2,181,964$       88,769$           (1,490)$            2,523,705$      
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND 

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
NONMAJOR SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Transportation Economic
and Street Development

Public Parks Special Loan Assessment
Safety Capital Revenue Fund Programs Districts Totals

REVENUES
Property taxes -$                     -$                 -$                   -$                     9,204$             9,204$            
Intergovernmental revenues -                       2,377            711,868         -                       -                       714,245          
Fines and penalties -                       -                   1,091             -                       -                       1,091              
Use of money and property 1,252               213               4,549             164                  -                       6,178              
Grant drawdowns 80,301             -                   98,481           -                       -                       178,782          
Repayment of loans -                       -                   -                     11,592             -                       11,592            

Miscellaneous 21,894             100               15,489           -                       -                       37,483            

Total revenues 103,447           2,690            831,478         11,756             9,204               958,575          

EXPENDITURES
Current:

General government -                       -                   -                     -                       11,606             11,606            
Community development -                       -                   -                     -                       1,440               1,440              
Public safety 62,721             -                   -                     -                       -                       62,721            
Public works -                       -                   524,377         -                       -                       524,377          
Parks and recreation -                       41,659          -                     -                       -                       41,659            

Capital outlay:
Public safety 85,434             -                   -                     -                       -                       85,434            
Public works -                       -                   102,134         -                       -                       102,134          

Parks and recreation -                       12,788          -                     -                       -                       12,788            

Total expenditures 148,155           54,447          626,511         -                       13,046             842,159          

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over

 (under) expenditures (44,708)            (51,757)        204,967         11,756             (3,842)              116,416          

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Operating transfers out (80,000)            -                   -                     (85,960)            -                       (165,960)         

-                     

Total other financing sources (uses) (80,000)            -                   -                     (85,960)            -                       (165,960)         

Net change in fund balances (124,708)          (51,757)        204,967         (74,204)            (3,842)              (49,544)           

Fund balances - beginning 300,957           101,734        1,953,992      74,207             (10)                   2,430,880       

Fund balances - ending 176,249$         49,977$        2,158,959$    3$                    (3,852)$            2,381,336$     
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 
 

Asset Kings Corcoran
Seizure County Police

(Unprocessed) CDBG Explorers Total

ASSETS
Cash 752$                14,645$            3,070$              18,467$            
Receivables:

Interest -                       88                     -                       88                     
Notes -                       1,135,596         -                       1,135,596         

Total assets 752$                1,150,329$       3,070$              1,154,151$       

LIABILITIES

Due to other agencies 752$                1,150,329$       3,070$              1,154,151$       

Total liabilities 752$                1,150,329$       3,070$              1,154,151$       
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES 

ALL AGENCY FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

 
 

Balance Balance
July 1, 2011 Additions Deductions June 30, 2012

ASSETS SEIZURES (UNPROCESSED)

ASSETS
Cash 752$                -$                     -$                     752$                

Total assets 752$                -$                     -$                     752$                

LIABILITIES

Due to other agencies 752$                -$                     -$                     752$                

Total liabilities 752$                -$                     -$                     752$                

KINGS COUNTY CDBG

ASSETS
Cash 21,367$           27,037$           (33,759)$          14,645$           
Receivables:

Interest 171                  -                       (83)                   88                    
Notes 1,162,033        -                       (26,437)            1,135,596        

Total assets 1,183,571$      27,037$           (60,279)$          1,150,329$      

LIABILITIES
Due to other agencies 1,183,571$      -$                     (33,242)$          1,150,329$      

Total liabilities 1,183,571$      -$                     (33,242)$          1,150,329$      

CORCORAN POLICE EXPLORERS

ASSETS

Cash 2,276$             3,759$             (2,965)$            3,070$             

Total assets 2,276$             3,759$             (2,965)$            3,070$             

LIABILITIES
Due to other agencies 2,277$             3,531$             (2,738)$            3,070$             

Total liabilities 2,277$             3,531$             (2,738)$            3,070$             
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OTHER INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTOL OVER 
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

 
 
To the Honorable Mayor and City Council 
City of Corcoran, California 
 
 
We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and 
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller 
General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, 
each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of City of Corcoran, California (the City), as of and 
for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise 
City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated January 17, 2014. 
 
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 
 
In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered City’s internal control over financial 
reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the 
purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on 
the effectiveness of City’s internal control.  Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of City’s 
internal control. 
 
A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis.  A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City’s financial statements will 
not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.  A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to 
merit attention by those charged with governance. 
 
Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and 
was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant 
deficiencies.  Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we 
consider to be material weaknesses.  However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified. 
 
Compliance and Other Matters 
 
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether City’s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial 
statement amounts.  However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our 
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.  The results of our tests disclosed no instances of 
noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards. 
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Purpose of this Report 
 
The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control or on 
compliance.  This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards in considering the City’s internal control and compliance.  Accordingly, this communication is not 
suitable for any other purpose. 

 
Clovis, California 
January 17, 2014 
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FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 
 

SECTION I – SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified? Yes X No

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered
  to be material weaknesses? Yes X None reported

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No

 
 
SECTION II – FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
None reported 
 
 
 
SECTION III – FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
None reported 
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CITY OF CORCORAN 
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 
 
 
FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 
 
Finding 2012-01 
 
Condition: The City of Corcoran’s governmental capital assets schedule had several errors 

from the calculation of depreciation, historical cost values, and transferring of 
assets. 

 
Criteria:    Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 34  
 
Cause: Due to staff shortages, there was a lack of review to ensure accuracy of the capital 

assets schedule. 
 
Effect:   Governmental capital assets were understated by $33,579 in the prior fiscal year. 
 
Recommendation: The capital assets schedule should be reviewed for propriety by someone other 

than the person preparing the depreciation schedule and the City should invest in 
capital assets software to help with the tracking and depreciation of capital assets. 

 
Response: The City will make it a priority to update and review the fixed asset schedules on 

an ongoing basis and review options for streamlining the process.  
 
Status:   Implemented 
 
 
 
FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
 
None reported 
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       PUBLIC HEARING 
                                                                                                        ITEM # 5B 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Corcoran City Council 
 
FROM: Kevin Tromborg: Assistant Community Development Director 
 
SUBJECT:     Public Hearing to obtain comments to consider Resolution No. 2718 
adopting  new building/planning permit fees. 
 
DATE: February 11, 2014    MEETING DATE: February 18, 
2014  
 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
 
Move to approve Resolution 2718 adoption of new building/planning fees. 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
The California Health and Safety Code section 1849.29 (a) requires all construction 
inspectors, plans examiners, and Building Officials to complete a minimum of 45 hours 
of continuing education for every three year period with at least eight hours regarding 
disability access. This is in conjunction with each certification held with an allowable 
overlap depending on the individual certification. The education requirement are 
typically met through CALBO’s (California Building Officials Associations) training and 
education week that is presented twice a year, one in Northern California (San Ramon) 
and one in Southern California (Ontario). The California Health and Safety Code allows 
for a local government to add or increase inspection fees to the extent necessary to offset 
any added cost incurred in complying with these requirements. The annual cost for 
continuing education is as follows 
2011: 5,160.00  
2012: 4895.00 
2013: 4789.00 
2014: 4525.00 to date 
Adding a flat rate fee of $10.00 per permit based on approximately 200 permits a year 
adds $ 2000.00. The City of Corcoran is averaging approximately 200 permits per year 
for the past three years. In 2013 The Building Department collected approximately 
63,000 in Building permit fees. At 4% this equates to $2520.00. My recommendation is a 
minimum charge of $10.00 for any permit under $250.00 and a 4% fee for permits above 
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City Offices:  832 Whitley Avenue     *      Corcoran, CA 93212     *     Phone 
559/992-2151 

$250.00. This will generate between $4000.00 and $6000.00 annually based on the 2013 
permit fees.  
 
Many jurisdictions nation wide are adding an IT fee in conjunction with their permitting 
process to offset the overhead of programs and hardware cost associated with Community 
Development. These fees range from a $5.00 minimum per permit to a $20.00 minimum 
for permits under $500.00 and or 4% of the permit fees (does not include impact fees that 
are attached to Building permits.) to no minimum with a 1.5% fee per permit issued (City 
of Los Angeles) My recommendation is a minimum of $5.00 for every permit issued 
(Building and Planning) under $250.00 and a 3% fee for permits over $250.00. Based on 
Community Development permits in 2013 this will generate approximately $3500.00 to 
offset the cost of program and IT upgrades.   
 
 
BUDGET IMPACT 
 
These added fees will generate and add $7000.00 to $10,000.00 to the General fund 
annually.  
 



RESOLUTION NO. 2718 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF CORCORAN 
ADOPTING BUILDING PERMIT FEES TO OFFSET TRAINING AND IT COSTS 

FOR THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Health and Safety Code Section 1849.29(a) requires construction 
inspectors, plans examiners, and building officials to complete a minimum of 45 hours of 
continuing education training every three years; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Health and Safety Code allows local governments to add or 
increase inspection fees to comply with the training requirements; and,  
 
 WHEREAS, local governments are also adding IT fees to building permits to 
offset software and hardware costs associated with permitting; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council of the City of 
Corcoran hereby adopts the following fees to be added to building permits: 
 
 Permits up to $250 Permits $250 or more 
Training/Continuing Education Fee $10 4% of permit 
IT Fee $5 3% of permit 
 
 I hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at a regular 
meeting of the Corcoran City Council duly called and held on the 18th day of February 
2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:     
 
NOES:    
 
ABSENT:   
 
 
 
     APPROVED:  _____________________________ 
        Jim Wadsworth, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: __________________________________ 
      Lorraine P. Lopez City Clerk 
 

 







 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 620 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 9 BUILDING REGULATIONS OF THE 
CITY OF CORCORAN TO ADOPT 2013 TITLE 24 CODE OF REGULATIONS 
 

Chapter 1 
CALIFORNIA BUILDING CODE 

California code of regulations 
Title 24 Part 2 Volumes 1 and 2 

 
SECTION:  
 
9-1-1:  Adoption 
9-1-2:  Definitions; Applications of Terms 
9-1-3:  Fees For Permits And Inspection 
9-1-4:  Building Code Exemptions and Superseding Provisions 
9-1-5:  Additional Regulations 
9-1-6:  Ordinance Repeals 
 
Section 9-1-1 of said Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
9-1-1:  ADOPTION: The City of Corcoran does hereby adopt by reference as the          

official Building Code of the City, the 2014 California Building Code California 
Code of Regulations Title 24, Part 2, Volume 1 of 2,  Part 2 Volume 2 of 2, based 
on the 2012 International Building Model Code. And specifically chapter 
1Division 2 scope and  Administration, Appendix C Group U Agricultural 
Buildings, Appendix F Rodent Proofing, Appendix H Signs, Appendix I Patio 
Covers, Appendix J Grading, Appendix Chapter A1 Seismic Strengthening 
provisions for unreinforced masonry bearing wall. In addition, The City of 
Corcoran does hereby adopt by reference The 2013 California Historical Building 
Code, 2013 California Residential Code California Code of Regulations Title 24 
Part 2.5 with the exception and exclusion of appendix L Permit Fees. The 2013 
Administrative Code, the 1997 Uniform Code for the abatement of Dangerous 
buildings, the 1997 Uniform housing Code, and the 2013 Referenced Standard 
Code. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this chapter is, for 
any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity 
of the remaining portions of this chapter  

            The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all the 
provisions of this Chapter. The Building Official shall have the authority to render 
interpretations of this chapter and these codes and adopt policies and procedures 
in order to clarify the application of its provisions. For such purpose he/she shall 
have the powers of a police officer.   

 
 



9-1-2:  DEFINITIONS; APPLICATIONS OF TERMS:  Whenever any of the 
names or terms defined in this Section or in this Chapter or Codes adopted herein by 
reference, each such term or name shall have the meaning ascribed to it in this Section. 
 
A.   “City shall mean the City of Corcoran 
 
B. “The Authority having Jurisdiction” shall mean the Building Official of the City 

of Corcoran or Inspectors and Code Compliance Officers duly authorized to act in 
his/her behalf (Ord 497 NS. 

 
C. “Approved “Acceptable to the Authority having Jurisdiction. 
 
 
               
9-1-3:  FEES FOR PERMITS AND INPSECTION: The 2013 Fee schedules 
contained in any of these adopted codes are deleted and will be replaced by a Fee 
schedule prepared by the Building Official based on a fee study. In lieu of a fee study the 
existing fee schedule shall remain in effect. The determination of value or valuation 
under any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be made by the Building Official 
 
9-1-4:  BUILDING CODE EXEMPTIONS AND SUPERSEDING 
PROVISIONS:  The following sections of the 2013 California Building Codes are 
deleted, amended, modified or superseded as indicated: 
 
Section 107.3.1 Appendix Chapter 1 of said Code reads as follows: 
 

When the Building Official issues a permit the construction documents 
shall be Approved, in writing or by stamp as” Reviewed for Code 
Compliance” One set of construction documents so reviewed shall be 
retained by the Building Official. The other set shall be returned to the 
applicant, and shall be kept at the site of work and shall be opened to 
inspection by the Building Official or a duly authorized representative 
Such approved plans and specifications shall not be changed, modified or 
altered without authorization from the Building Official, and all work shall 
be done in accordance with the approved plans. 

 
 Housing Inspections and Letters of Compliance: Upon a request for a 

housing inspection, the applicant shall be charged a fee of - seventy seven 
dollars ($77.00) per hour with a two hour minimum, and a travel fee of  
fifty six cents ($0.56) per mile each way to be paid to the Building Official 
to cover the cost of the housing inspection and letter of compliance. 

 
 
 
 
  



9-1-5:  ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS:  (Reserved) (Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-1992) 
 
 
9-1-6:  ORDINANCE REPEALS:  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in 
conflict herein repealed, including Ordinance 497; except, that this repeal  shall not affect 
or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or committed in 
violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this Chapter.  
(Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-1992)    
 
 
 
 
 
 

 Chapter 2 
CALIFORNIA PLUMBING CODE 

California code of regulations 
Title 24 part 5 

 
SECTION:  
 
9-2-1:  Adoption 
9-2-2:  Definitions; Applications Of Terms 
9-2-3:  Fees For Permits And Inspection 
9-2-4:  Plumbing Code Exemptions And Superseding Provisions 
9-2-5:  Additional Regulations 
9-2-6:  Ordinance Repeals 
 
9-2-1:  ADOPTION: The City of Corcoran does hereby adopt by reference as the 
official Plumbing Code of the City, the 2013 California Plumbing Code Title 24, Part 5 
as published by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, 
based on the 2012 Uniform Plumbing Model Code. The 2012 Uniform swimming pool 
and Hot Tub Code. Included specifically are California Plumbing Code Appendix A 
(Administration), Appendix D (Drainage Systems), Appendix I (Installation Standards), 
and Appendix K (Private Sewage Systems)If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or 
phrase of this chapter is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the chapter. 
     
            The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all the 

provisions of this Chapter. The Building Official shall have the authority to render 
interpretations of this chapter and this code and adopt policies and procedures in 
order to clarify the application of its provisions. For such purpose he/she shall 
have the powers of a police officer.   

 
 
 



 
 
9-2-2:  DEFINITIONS; APPLICATIONS OF TERMS:  Whenever any of the 
names or terms defined in this Section are in this Chapter or Codes adopted herein by 
reference, each such term or name shall have the meaning ascribed to it in this Section. 
 
A.   “City shall mean the City of Corcoran 
 
B. All other names or terms shall apply to the appropriate officer, board or body of 

the City of Corcoran. 
 
C. “Authority having Jurisdiction” shall mean the Building Official of the City of 

Corcoran or inspectors and code compliance Officers duly authorized to act in 
his/her behalf.  (Ord. 497 N.S.,  
8-17-1992) 
 

D.        Approved  Acceptable to the Authority having Jurisdiction. 
 
 

 
9-2-3:  FEES FOR PERMITS AND INPSECTION: The 2013 Fee schedules 
contained in any of these adopted codes are deleted and will be replaced by a Fee 
schedule prepared by the Building Official based on a Fee Study. In lieu of a fee study 
the existing fee schedule shall remain in effect. The determination of value or valuation 
under any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be made by the Building Official 
 
 

 
Section 9-2-4 of said Code is hereby deleted: 
 
9-2-5: ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS:  (Reserved) (Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-1992) 
 
9-2-6:  ORDINANCE REPEALS:  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in    
conflict herein are repealed, including Ordinance 497; except, that this repeal shall not 
affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or 
committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this 
Chapter.  (Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-1992)    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

Chapter 3 
CALIFORNIA ELECTRICAL CODE 

California Code of Regulations 
Title 24 Part 3 

SECTION:  
 
9-3-1:  Adoption 
9-3-2:  Definitions; Applications Of Terms 
9-3-3:  Fees For Permits And Inspection 
9-3-4:  Electrical Code Exemptions And Superseding Provisions 
9-3-5:  Additional Regulations 
9-3-6:  Ordinance Repeals 
 
9-3-1:  ADOPTION: The City of Corcoran does hereby adopt by reference as the 

official Electrical Code of the City, the 2013 California Electrical Code Title 24 
Part 3. Published by BNI Productions, Inc. Based on the 2011 National Electric  
Model Code, copyright National Fire Production Association. Included 
specifically is Annex H (Administration) 

            The Building Official is hereby authorized and directed to enforce all the 
provisions of this Chapter. The Building Official shall have the authority to render 
interpretations of this chapter and this code and adopt policies and procedures in order to 
clarify the application of its provisions. For such purpose he/she shall have the powers of 
a police officer. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, or phrase of this chapter is, 
for any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall not affect the validity of 
the remaining portions of the chapter. 
  
 
 
9-3-2:  DEFINITIONS; APPLICATIONS OF TERMS:  Whenever any of the 
names or terms defined in this Section are in this Chapter or Codes adopted herein by 
reference, each such term or name shall have the meaning ascribed to it in this Section. 
 
A.   “City shall mean the City of Corcoran 
 
B. All other names or terms shall apply to the appropriate officer, board or body of 

the City of Corcoran. 
 
C.        “Chief Electrical Inspector” shall mean the Building Official of the City of        

 Corcoran. 
D.        “Authority having Jurisdiction” shall mean the Building Official of the City of    
              Corcoran or Inspectors and Code Compliance Officers duly authorized to act in    
              His/her behalf. 
E.         “ Approved” Acceptable to the Authority having Jurisdiction. 
 



 
 
 
-3-3:  FEES FOR PERMITS AND INPSECTION: The 2013 Fee schedules 
contained in any of these adopted codes are deleted and will be replaced by a Fee 
schedule prepared by the Building Official based on a Fee Study. In lieu of a fee study 
the existing fee schedule shall remain in effect. The determination of value or valuation 
under any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be made by the Building Official 
 
 
9-3-4:  ELECTRICAL CODE EXEMPTIONS AND SUPERSEDING 
PROVISIONS:  (Reserved) (Ord. N.S., 8-17-1992) 
 
9-3-5 ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS: 
 
A. Location:  the service disconnecting means shall be installed either inside or 

outside of a building or other structure at a readily accessible locations nearest he 
point of entrance of the service conductors.  Except in “H” occupancies, the main 
service disconnecting means shall be located outside the building at a readily 
accessible location in case of fire. 2013 CEC 230.70 (A) (1) - (C) 

 
B. Metal Lighting Fixtures, Lamp holders And Faceplates: Underground metal 

lighting fixtures, lamp holders and faceplates shall not be installed in contact with 
conducting surfaces nor within eight feet (8’) vertically or five feet (5’) 
horizontally of laundry tubs, bathtubs, shower baths, plumbing fixtures, steam 
pipes or other grounded metal work or grounded surfaces. 

 
 C.        Metal Pull Chains:  Metal pull chains used at these locations shall be provided        
            with insulating links.  (Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-1992) 
 
D.        Rating of Service Disconnecting means For one family dwelling Shall have a      
 rating of not less than 100 amperes 3-wire   
 
9-3-6 ORDINANCE REPEALS:  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in    

conflict herein are repealed, including Ordinance 497; except, that this 
repeal shall not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any 
person for any act done or committed in violation of any ordinance hereby 
repealed prior to the taking effect of this Chapter.  (Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-
1992) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
    



Chapter 4 
CALIFORNIA MECHANICAL CODE 

California Code of Regulations 
Title 24 Part 4 

 
 

SECTION:                                            
 
9-4-1:  Adoption 
9-4-2:  Definitions; Applications Of Terms 
9-4-3:  Fees For Permits And Inspection 
9-4-4:  Mechanical Code Exemptions And Superseding Provisions 
9-4-5:  Additional Regulations 
9-4-6:  Ordinance Repeals 
 
9-4-1:  ADOPTION: The City of Corcoran does hereby adopt by reference as the 
official Mechanical Code of the City, the 2013 California Mechanical Code as published 
by the International Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, based on, 2012 
Uniform Mechanical Model Code. Included specifically are the California Mechanical 
Code Appendix Chapter 1 (Administration) If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, 
or phrase of this chapter is, for any reason, held to be unconstitutional, such decision shall 
not affect the validity of the remaining portions of the chapter. 
 
  
 
9-4-2:  DEFINITIONS; APPLICATIONS OF TERMS:  Whenever any of the 
names or terms defined in this Section are in this Chapter or Codes adopted herein by 
reference, each such term or name shall have the meaning ascribed to it in this Section. 
 
A.   “City shall mean the City of Corcoran 
 
 B.         All other names or terms shall apply to the appropriate officer, board or body of     

        the City of Corcoran 
 
C.       “Authority having Jurisdiction” shall mean the Building Official of the City of    
            Corcoran or Inspectors and Code Compliance Officers duly authorized to act in    
            His/her behalf. 
 
D.      “ Approved” Acceptable to the Authority having Jurisdiction. 
 
 
9-4-3:  FEES FOR PERMITS AND INPSECTION:  The 2007 Fee schedules 
contained in any of these adopted codes are deleted and will be replaced by a Fee 
schedule prepared by the Building Official based on a Fee Study. In lieu of a fee study 
the existing fee schedule shall remain in effect. The determination of value or valuation 
under any of the provisions of this Chapter shall be made by the Building Official 



   
  
9-4-4: MECHANICAL CODE EXEMPTIONS AND SUPERSEDING PROVISIONS:  
The following section of the California Mechanical Code is hereby amended as follows: 
 
Table 3-C of said Code is hereby amended by adding item 22, which reads as follows: 
 

22.  In lieu of the foregoing specific fees, a flat rate may be charged for each unit 
for single-family dwellings, duplexes and multiple-family units in accordance 
with the current flat rate fees in the California Mechanical Code. (Ord. 497 N.S., 
8-17-1992; 1996 Code) 
 

9-4-5  ADDITIONAL REGULATIONS: (Reserved) (Ord. N.S., 8-17-1992) 
 
9-4-6  ORDINANCE REPEALS:  All other ordinances or parts of ordinances in    
conflict herein are hereby repealed, including Ordinance 497; except, that this repeal shall 
not affect or prevent the prosecution or punishment of any person for any act done or 
committed in violation of any ordinance hereby repealed prior to the taking effect of this 
Chapter.  (Ord. 497 N.S., 8-17-1992)    
 
 

Chapter 5 
CALIFORNIA FIRE CODE 

California Code of Regulations 
                                                           Title 24 Part 9 
 
 
SECTION:  
 
9-5-1:  Adoption 
9-5-2:  Establishment And Duties Of Fire Department 
9-5-3:  Definitions: Application Of Terms 
9-5-4:  Establishment Of Limits Of Districts In Which Storage Of  

  Flammable Or Combustible Liquids In Outside Aboveground Tanks Is     
To Be Prohibited 

9-5-5: Establishments Of Limits In Which Bulk Storage Of Liquefied Petroleum                               
Gases Is To Be Restricted 

9-5-6: Establishment Of Limits Of Districts In Which Storage Of Explosives And        
Blasting Agents Is To Be Prohibited   

9-5-7: Amendments Made In The Uniform Fire Code 
9-5-8: Appeals 
9-5-9: New Materials, Processes Or Occupancies Which May Require Permits 
9-5-10: Penalties  
 
9-5-1:  ADOPTION: There is hereby adopted by the City Council for the 
purpose of prescribing regulations governing conditions hazardous to life and property 



from fire or explosion, that certain code known as the 2013 California Fire Code 
California Code of regulations Title 24 Part 9, based on the 2012 International Fire code, 
including Appendix chapter 1 division 2 (Administration ), Appendix Chapter 4 ( special 
occupancies ), Appendix B (Fire flow requirements), Appendix C ( Fire Hydrant 
Locations ), Appendix D (Apparatus access), Appendix E (Hazard occupancies), 
Appendix F (Hazard Rankings),  Appendix G (Cryogenic Fluids), Appendix H (Hazard 
Management Plans)  (Ord. 455 N.S., 3-21-1988) 
 
 
 
9-5-2 ESTABLISHMENT AND DUTIES OF FIRE DEPARTMENT: 
 
 
A. The California Fire Code shall be enforced, supervised, and interpreted by the 

Kings County Fire Chief or authorized representative. And/or the City of 
Corcoran Building Official 

 
 
B. The Fire Chief of the Fire Department may detail such members of the Fire 

Department as inspectors as shall from time to time be necessary.  The Fire Chief 
of the Fire Department in conjunction with the Building Official shall recommend 
to the City Manager the employment of technical inspectors or consultants who, 
when such authorization is made, shall be selected for their special credentials and 
qualifications.  (Ord. 455 N.S., 3-21-1998) 

 
9-5-3:  DEFINITIONS; APPLICATIONS OF TERMS:   
 
A.   Wherever the word “jurisdiction” is used in the California Fire Code, it shall be 

held to mean City of Corcoran. 
 
B. Wherever the term “Corporation Counsel” is used in the California Fire Code, it 

shall be held to mean the Attorney for the City of Corcoran.   
 
C. Wherever the word “Fire Department” is used in the California Fire Code, it shall 

be held to mean the Kings County Fire Department. 
 
D. Wherever the word “Fire Chief” is used in the California Fire Code, it shall be 

held to mean the Fire Chief of the Kings County Fire Department.  (Ord. 497 
N.S., 8-17-1992) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Chapter 6 
NUMBERING BUILDINGS 

 
SECTION:  
 
9-6-2:  Failure to Place Numbers; Lien 
 
Section 9-6-2 of said Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
9-6-2:  FAILURE TO PLACE NUMBERS; LIEN: 
 

A. Failure To Comply:  If any owner of an existing structure shall fail or neglect to 
comply with the provisions of this Chapter, the Building Official is hereby 
authorized and instructed to purchase and install property numbers.  The cost of 
such numbers, labor for placing them, and administrative cost are set at one 
hundred dollars ($100.00).  If not paid by the owner of record, such cost shall be, 
and is hereby declared to constitute, a lien against the property. (Ord. 488 N.S., 5-
20-1991) 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Chapter 7  
MOVING BUILDINGS 

 
SECTION:  
 
9-7-7:  Fees 
 
Section 9-7-7 of said Code is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
9-7-7: FEES:  The 2013 fee schedule contained in any of these adopted codes are 

deleted and will be replaced by a fee schedule prepared by the Building 
Official based on a fee study. In lieu of a fee study the existing fee 
schedule shall remain in effect. Relocation investigation service shall be 
for Seventy Seven dollars ($77.00) per hour plus fifty cents ($0.56) per 
mile.   (Ord. 226 N.S., 8-3-1964; 1996 Code)     

 
All other provisions of Title 9, of said Code shall be and remain in full force and effect. 
 
This Ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) days from the date of its passage.  Before the 
expiration of fifteen (15) days after its passage, this Ordinance shall be published once in 
the Corcoran Journal, a newspaper of general circulation, printed and published in the 
City of Corcoran. 



 
PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Corcoran at a regular 
meeting thereof held on the 18th day of February, 2014, by the following vote: 
 
AYES:  
 
NOES:  
 
ABSENT:  
 
    APPROVED:______________________________ 
        Mayor 
 
ATTEST:_____________________________ 
  City Clerk 
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STAFF REPORTS 
 ITEM NO: 7-A   
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Corcoran City Council 
 
FROM: Kindon Meik, City Manager 
 
DATE:  February 12, 2014            Meeting Date:  February 18, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Consider One Year Contract Extension With Auditing Firm  
 
Recommendation: 
Approve one year extension with Price, Paige & Company as the City’s auditing firm.    
 
Discussion: 
Price, Paige & Company has contracted with the City to complete its annual audit since 2007.  
All audits have been carried out with professionalism and noted expertise.   
 
At this time, Staff is requesting a one year contract extension with Price, Paige & Company.  
With the pending personnel transitions in the Finance Department as a result of upcoming 
retirements, it is in the City’s best interest to contract with the current auditing firm and thus 
continue to utilize the auditing team’s experience and familiarity with the City’s financial 
statements and reports.   
 
Budget Impact: 
The proposal from Price, Paige & Company is not expected to exceed $42,335.  This amount 
represents no increase from the 2012-2013 audit performed by the firm.       
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STAFF REPORTS 
 ITEM NO: 7-C   
 
MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  Corcoran City Council 
 
FROM: Kindon Meik, City Manager 
 
DATE:  February 13, 2014             Meeting Date:  February 18, 2014 
 
SUBJECT: Consider Centennial Proclamation Recognizing The Corcoran Journal 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Approve centennial proclamation recognizing The Corcoran Journal.  
 
 
Discussion: 
As a continuing effort during the centennial year, the City will be recognizing different groups 
and organizations that have positively shaped and contributed to Corcoran’s history.  
 
This month the City wishes to recognize The Corcoran Journal for its contribution as a weekly 
publication.  The Corcoran Journal has been in continuous publication since 1908 and provides 
news, editorial commentary, updates on local sports and community events, promotes Corcoran 
businesses and many other worthwhile articles that help define Corcoran’s identity.   
 
 
Budget Impact: 
None.   

CORCORAN 
City of  

A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION  
     

FOUNDED 1914 



PROCLAMATION 
of the City Council of the City of Corcoran 

RECOGNIZING THE CORCORAN JOURNAL DURING THE 100th 
ANNIVERSARY OF 

THE CITY OF CORCORAN, CALIFORNIA 
 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Corcoran declared 2014 a “Year of Celebration” for the Centennial 

Anniversary in commemoration of the city incorporation on August 10, 1914; and,    
 
WHEREAS,  the City began as a railroad whistle stop station, has since built upon its farming heritage, 

and is now known as the “Farming Capital of California;” and,  
 
WHEREAS,  the community has grown with the addition of diverse businesses and organizations that 

help make Corcoran a “Great Place to Raise a Family;” and, 
 
WHEREAS,  without its many partners, Corcoran would not have become the community that it is 

today and furthermore the City of Corcoran wishes to celebrate its 100th Anniversary by 
reflecting on all that has been accomplished and all that can still be achieved in the 
future; and 

 
WHEREAS,  as the City commemorates it’s centennial, the City Council honors those who have added 

to the quality of life and fostered a sense of community pride. 

WHEREAS,   the Corcoran Journal has been in continuous publication as a weekly newspaper since 
1908 and provides an invaluable service by printing local news, highlighting the 
accomplishments of Corcoran residents, promoting business activities and community 
events, and by helping to create a collective memory and historical identity for the 
community.   

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Mayor and City Council of the City of Corcoran hereby 
recognize 

  

The Corcoran Journal 
and encourage all citizens, civic organizations and business partners to acknowledge The Corcoran 
Journal for its dedicated service and its ongoing contribution to the City of Corcoran and its residents.  
 
PASSED AND ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the Corcoran City Council held on the 18th day of 
February 2014. 

 
  

___________________________________ 
Jim Wadsworth, Mayor 

 
______________________________   ______________________________ 
Jerry Robertson, Vice-Mayor        Raymond Lerma, Council Member 
 
_____________________________     _____________________________ 
Mark Cartwright, Council Member      Sidonio Palmerin, Council Member   



 STAFF REPORT 
ITEM #: _7-D_ 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO:  City Council 
 
FROM: Kindon Meik, City Manager 
 
DATE: February 13, 2014  MEETING DATE: February 18, 2014 
  
SUBJECT: Consider revising Assistant to the City Manager/City Clerk classification to City 
Clerk and approve revised job description. 
 
 
Recommendation: 
Motion to approve the City Clerk classification for the City Manger’s Department and approve 
revised job description. 
 
 
Discussion: 
As a result of ongoing discussions with the City Clerk, it was deemed necessary to revise the job 
description for the position to more accurately reflect the needs of the department and the City.   
 
The revised City Clerk job classification clarifies responsibilities for a position that provides 
administrative assistance and clerical support to the City Council, City Boards and Commissions, 
and the various City departments.   
 
 
Budget Impact: 
None.  The compensation scale for the City Clerk position will not change from the Assistant to 
the City Manager/City Clerk position identified and approved in the current budget. 
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Revised: February 2014 

 CITY CLERK 

 

 

 

 

 

Department: City Manager FLSA Status: Exempt 

 

GENERAL PURPOSE:  Under the general supervision of the City Manager assumes 
responsibility for City Clerk operations; performs a variety of responsible and complex clerical, 
secretarial administrative, and customer service duties for the City Manager, City Council and 
City Departments; oversees the preparation, codification, and maintenance of the City’s official 
records; publication and dissemination of public documents and various official proceedings; 
ensures compliance with legal requirements for municipal record management; coordinates and 
conducts special projects; supervises assigned personnel; recognizes and maintains confidential 
information and materials; work involves a high degree of independent judgment, tact and 
discretion requiring a thorough knowledge of department procedures and policies.  Performs 
related responsibilities as required. 

 

TYPICAL DUTIES: 

The following duties ARE NOT intended to serve as a comprehensive list of all duties performed 
by all employees in this classification, only a representative summary of the primary duties and 
responsibilities. Incumbent(s) may not be required to perform all duties listed and may be 
required to perform additional, position-specific duties. 
 

 Serves as Clerk to the City Council and as the Clerk/Secretary to designated City 
agencies, boards, and commissions; gathers, organizes and prepares information for 
reports, and presentations. 

 Prepares, distributes, and maintains official files and records for Council, City agencies, 
boards, and commissions; prepares, processes, distributes, and posts public notices, 
proclamations, agendas, minutes, bulletins, contracts, resolutions, ordinances, and other 
related documents; attends City Council and Board/Commission meetings. 

 Composes clear and concise letters, reports, memoranda, correspondence and other 
written materials.  

 Compiles and maintains complex, extensive and accurate records and files including 
electronic storage of records and files; coordinates and ensures compliance with records 
management and destruction. 

 Ensures compliance with applicable Federal and State laws relating to the responsibilities 
of a City Clerk including but not limited to: Ralph M. Brown Act, California Public 
Records Act, Maddy Act, California Elections Code, Conflict of Interest regulation and 
other applicable codes and or ordinances. 

 Arranges and coordinates the municipal election nomination process, general elections 
and special elections, and coordinates with the County elections office; orders and 
maintains election materials; oversees recruitments for committees, boards, and 
commissions.  



JOB DESCRIPTION        
City Clerk 
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 Makes appointments, arranges travel and conferences, coordinates special events, and  
schedules use of  designated City facilities. 

 Provides assistance in reviewing and revising city-wide policies and procedures as 
required. 

 Responsible for the efficient operation of the Department’s clerical duties and supervises, 
trains, and evaluates the work of assigned personnel.  

 Manages and maintains the City’s official records and documents in accordance with all 
regulatory requirements governing the tracking, storage, retrieval, and destruction of 
municipal records. 

 Responds to and processes various types of requests for public records and information.  

 Communicates and coordinates with the Fair Political Practices Commission (FPPC) 
regarding Conflict of Interest reporting; and ensures that appropriate ethics training is 
available on a timely basis; distributes and processes FPPC documents and materials; 
serves as the filling officer for statements of economic interest for designated employees, 
officials, and candidates as required by law. 

 Provides administrative and clerical support to the City Manager and City Council; 
assists with requests and reports; coordinates and conducts special projects in the City 
Manager’s department and other City departments as assigned. 

 Shall be the custodian of the City seal; maintain custody of official records and archives 
of the City including ordinances, resolutions, contracts, agreements, deeds, insurance and 
minutes; certify copies as required; and may administer oaths. 

 Assists in the development of the City budget and provides input and helps monitor the 
Council and City Manager’s budgets; relieves supervisor of routine personnel, budget, 
payroll and purchasing duties. 

 May provide assistance in coordinating the City’s recruiting, employee orientation, 
training, performance evaluation, health and benefits, and workers’ compensation 
functions. 

 Coordinates and/or supervises the City’s risk management function  

 Performs the duties of Safety Coordinator; administers the City’s Safety Program; leads 
and/or participates in Safety Committee meetings. 

 Monitors bid process for projects and materials; assigns bid dates; officiates bid 
openings; retains or releases bid bonds; provides copies of bids to appropriate 
departments. 

 Assists with and/or administers the maintenance of the City website, social media 
accounts, telephone system, and mailroom; and coordinates the reservation of City 
facilities. 

 May assist with the customer service and clerical needs in other City departments. 

 Performs related duties as required. 

 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS: 

Education and Experience: 

Bachelor’s Degree in Business or Public Administration or related field; AND four years 
progressively responsible experience working in a City Clerk’s Office, including two years 
supervisory experience; OR an equivalent combination of education and experience. 
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 Required Licenses or Certifications: 

 Must possess a valid California Driver’s License. 
 Possession of, or ability to obtain within 6 months of appointment, certification of Notary 

Public. 
 Certification as a Certified Municipal Clerk (CMC) is desirable. 
 

Required Knowledge of: 

 City operations, policies, and procedures. 

 Legal requirements relating to agendas, meeting proceedings, and record-keeping and 
maintenance. 

 California elections law and procedures. 

 Functions, policies, and procedures of city government. 

 Regulations governing municipal administrative operations. 

 Principles and standards of records management, including legal requirements for retention 
and disclosure. 

 Human resources and risk management principles. 

 General office equipment and standard computer software applications. 

 Supervisory principles, practices, and methods. 

 Works necessary hours and times to accomplish goals, objectives and required tasks; attend 
meetings in the evening and on weekends as required. 

 

Required Skill in: 

 Report preparation and presentation; business and analytical report writing. 

 Research methodologies; short and long-range planning. 

 Serving as custodian of the City’s official records and documents. 

 Providing secretarial support and assistance to the City Manager and City Council. 

 Coordinating the City’s risk management, and assisting with human resources functions. 

 Administering and coordinating the City’s Safety Program. 

 Supervising, leading, and delegating tasks and authority. 

 Establishing and maintaining cooperative working relationships with staff, City departments, 
outside agencies, community organizations, vendors, and the general public. 

 

Physical Demands / Work Environment:   

 Work is performed in a standard office environment. 
 Subject to sitting, standing, walking, bending, reaching and lifting of objects up to 25 

pounds. 



City Offices 
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MATTERS FOR MAYOR AND COUNCIL 
       ITEM #: 8   

MEMORANDUM 

MEETING DATE: February 18, 2014 

TO:  Corcoran City Council 

FROM: Kindon Meik, City Manager 

SUBJECT: Matters for Mayor & Council 

UPCOMING EVENTS / MEETINGS 
o March 3, 2014 (Monday) City Council Meeting – 6:00 PM, Council Chambers 
o March 17, 2014 (Monday) City Council Meeting – 6:00 PM, Council Chambers 
 

A. Information Items 
   
 
B. Council Comments – This is the time for council members to comment on matters of interest.  
 

1. Staff Referral Items  
 
C. Committee Reports    
 
D. Council Goals 

Two Year Goals: 
1. Safe Crossings on Highway 43 
2. Balance Budget 
3. Maintain Services 
4. Prepare for Centennial Activities  

Long Term Goals: 
1. Lighted Soccer Field 
2. Demolition of Grain Building 
3. Police Department Facility 
 

 

CORCORAN 
City of  

A MUNICIPAL CORPORATION  
     

FOUNDED 1914 
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